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TRANSMITTAL LETTER 

 
 
 
 
To 
The Shareholders, 
Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission, 
Registrar of Joint Stock Companies & Firms, 
Dhaka Stock Exchange Limited and 
Chittagong Stock Exchange Limited. 
 
 
Subject: Annual Report for the year ended on June 30, 2020. 
 
 
Dear Sir(s): 
 
We are pleased to enclose a copy of the Annual Report of Apex Spinning & Knitting Mills 
Limited together with the Audited Financial statements comprising of Statement of Financial 
Position as at June 30, 2020, Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income, 
Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended on June 30, 
2020 along with Notes thereon for your kind information and record. 
 
 
Yours sincerely, 
 
 
 
Sd/- 
Md. Delour Hossen 
Acting Company Secretary 
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NOTICE OF THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 

 
Notice is hereby given that the TWENTY-NINTH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF APEX 
SPINNING & KNITTING MILLS LIMITED will be held on Thrusday, December 24, 2020 at 
9.30 A.M. by using digital platform through link http://virtualagm.apexknitting.com (in pursuance 

with BSEC Order SEC/SRMIC/94-231/25 dated 08 July 2020) to transact the following 
businesses: 

 

AGENDA 
 

1. To receive and adopt the Audited Financial Statements for the year ended on 30 June 
2020 and report of the Auditors’ and Directors thereon. 
 

2. To declare Dividend for the year 2019-2020.  
 

3. To elect Directors. 
 

4. To appoint Statutory Auditors for the year 2020-2021 and fix their remuneration. 
 

5. To appoint Compliance Auditors for the Certification on Corporate Governance Code for 
the year 2020-2021 and fix their remuneration. 

 
6. To transact any other business of the Company, with permission of the Chair. 
 
 
Place: Dhaka 
Date: December 03 , 2020 

 
By order of the Board of Directors 

 
Sd/- 

 Md. Delour Hossen 
Acting Company Secretary 

NOTES: 
 

1. The Shareholders whose name appeared in the Register of Members of the Company or in the 
Depository on the “Record Date i.e. November 18, 2020” are eligible to attend in the Annual 
General Meeting and be entitled to the Dividend.  

 

2. The detail login process and link of the online portal to attend the meeting will be communicated to 
the shareholders through email in due course and will be available at the company’s Website at: 
http://www.apexknitting.com.  

 

3. A member entitled to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting may appoint only another 
member as proxy to attend and vote in his/her stead as per para 99 of the Articles of Association of 
the Company.  

 

4. Pursuant to the Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission’s (BSEC) Notification No.: 
BSEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/208/Admin/81 dated 20th June, 2018 the Annual Report 2019-20 of the 
Company shall be sent to the respective e-mail address of the shareholders mentioned in their 
Beneficiary Owner (BO) Accounts with the depository. In case of non-receipt of Annual Report 
2019-20 of the Company through e-mail, Shareholders may collect the same from the Registered 
Office of the Company. The Annual Report also be available at the Company’s Website at: 
http://www.apexknitting.com . 

 

5. In pursuance of BSEC’s Notification No.: SEC/SRMI/2000-953/1950 dated October 24, 2000 
gazette on November 07, 2000, the Company shall hold discussions in the Annual General Meeting 
strictly in conformity with the provisions of the Companies Act, 1994. 

  
 
 
 
 

 

http://virtualagm.apexknitting.com/
http://www.apexknitting.com/
http://www.apexknitting.com/
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CORPORATE DIRECTORY 
 
 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 
Chairman          :  Mr. Zafar Ahmed 
Managing Director        :  Mr. Zahur Ahmed PhD 
Director (Representative of Apex Foods Ltd.) :  Mr. Shahriar Ahmed 
Director (ICB Representative)    :  Mr. Md. Rafique Ullah 
Independent Director       :  Mr. Kazi Faruq Kader  

 

 

AUDIT COMMITTEE 
 

Chairman           :  Mr. Kazi Faruq Kader, Independent Director  
Member          :  Mr. Zahur Ahmed PhD, Managing Director 
Member          :  Mr. Shahriar Ahmed, Director 
Member          : Mr. Md. Rafique Ullah, Director 

 
NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE 

 
Chairman           :  Mr. Kazi Faruq Kader, Independent Director  
Member          :  Mr. Zahur Ahmed PhD, Managing Director 
Member          :  Mr. Shahriar Ahmed, Director 
 

 

SENIOR CORPORATE OFFICIALS 
 

Chief Financial Officer      :  Mr. Kamruzzaman FCA 
Head of Internal Audit & Compliance             : Mr. Md. Golam Kibria FCMA 

Acting Company Secretary                       :  Mr. Md. Delour Hossen 
 
 

LEGAL ADVISORS 
 

K. Fazlul Quadir 
Abdur Razzaque & Associates 

Md. Shahjahan Khan 
 

AUDITORS 
 

M/s. Hussain Farhad & Co. 

Chartered Accountants 
 

 
BANKERS 

 
Eastern Bank Limited 

Principal Branch 
Dilkusha C/A, Dhaka-1000. 

& 
The Hongkong & Shanghai Banking Corporation Ltd. 

Dhaka Main Office, Dhaka. 
 
REGISTERED OFFICE FACTORY 
  
Rupayan Golden Age, 5th & 6th floor  Mouza & P.O. Chandora 
99 Gulshan Avenue, Gulshan, Dhaka-1212 P.S. Kaliakoir, Dist. Gazipur 
Bangladesh. Bangladesh. 
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Five Years Statistics 

  Figure in Thousand Taka  
  

Particulars 
2019-20 2018-19 2017-18 2016-17 

 
2015-16 

(Fifteen months) 

Results of Operations:      
      

Revenue 
         
2,751,013  3,537,790 3,633,663  3,205,557   4,319,335  

Gross Profit     222,226  287,345  289,542   245,333   338,619  

Operating Profit       83,128  127,216 62,859   43,166    53,366  

Profit before Tax      30,701  55,690  62,411    47,270   56,012  

Net Profit after Tax      12,428  27,223  24,021    23,163    28,765  

Earnings Per Share (EPS)           1.48  3.24   2.86      2.76     3.42  

Dividend Per Share*           1.50  2.00  2.00     2.00    2.20  

Financial Positions:      

      

Total Assets 
        
1,280,118  1,387,062  1,465,206  

 
 1,325,340   1,461,496  

Property, Plant and Equipment-Gross  1,390,443  1,360,371  1,346,231   1,343,392   1,248,060  

Property, Plant and Equipment - Net      216,155  224,142  250,992   296,161    250,630  

Gross Working Capital     963,154  1,057,297  1,107,179  994,046   1,183,939  

Net Working Capital     195,694  147,557  110,775   115,834   160,401  

Working Capital Loan       24,261  38,524  57,911   16,178    83,790  

Share Capital        84,000    84,000    84,000   84,000    84,000  

Share Premium       15,000   15,000   15,000   15,000   15,000  

Reserve and Surplus      345,849    350,221   339,632  329,964  325,388  

Share Holders’ Equity      455,067   467,893  462,423  443,183  434,056  

Long Term Loan        81,116                   -                 -                   -           -  

Key Financial Ratios:      

      
Current Ratio 1.25 1.16 1.11 1.13 1.16 

Debt to Total Assets (%) 64.45 66.24   68.54  66.55 70.30 

Return on Equity (%) 2.73 5.82 5.19 5.23 6.63 

Net Assets Value Per Share 54.17 55.70 55.05 52.77 51.67 

Net Operating Cash Flows Per Share 0.66 20.94 (10.31) 14.23 25.20 

Dividend Payout Ratio (%) 101.35 61.73 69.94 72.46 64.33 

Financial Charges Coverage Ratio  1.42 1.65 1.77 1.60 1.59 

Others:      

      
Market Price Per Share (30th June) 
March) 

130.70 140.30 173.35 111.93 92.74 

Price Earnings Multiple 88.31 43.30   60.62   40.55    27.12  

Number of Employees 5,513 5,887   5,824   5,900     5,621  

Capacity Utilization (%) 71.30 90.48    92.12   90.90     92.25  

 
* The Board of Directors recommended Cash Dividend @Tk. 1.5/- per Share for the year ended on 

30th June 2020. 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



APEX SPINNING & KNITTING MILLS LIMITED                                 Annual Report 2019-2020 

6 

 

AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT 
 

The audit committee of APEX SPINNING & KNITTING MILLS LIMITED is a sub-committee of the 
Board of Directors and appointed and authorized by the Board in pursuance of BSEC notification to 
review the activities of business. 
 

The Audit committee of the company comprises of four Directors, nominated by the Board of Directors 
of the Company, headed by me, Kazi Faruq Kader, Independent Director. At present, the other 
members of the committee are, Mr. Zahur Ahmed PhD, Mr. Shahriar Ahmed and Mr. Md. Rafique Ullah, 
ICB nominated Director. 
 

The committee has worked closely with the company’s financial term to ensure that the audit processes 
adopted in connection with the financial statements are deal with best practice. The committee was 
empowered to examine the matter related to financial and other affairs of the Company. This committee 
ensures a sound financial reporting system and updated information to the Board of Directors. 
 

The committee normally meets in the next month of every quarter. During the year 2019-20, six Audit 
Committee meetings were held, the details of attendance of each member at the Audit Committee 
meetings are as follows: 

Name of the Member Number of Audit Committee Meeting held Attended 

Mr. Kazi Faruq Kader 6 6 

Mr. Zahur Ahmed PhD 6 6 

Mr. Shahriar Ahmed 6 6 

Mr. Tarek Nizamuddin Ahmed 4 4 

Mr. Md. Rafique Ullah 2 1 

During the year the Audit Committee review and carry out the following tasks: 

 Oversee the financial reporting process. 
 Monitor choice of accounting policies and principles. 
 Monitor Internal Audit and Compliance process to ensure that it is adequately 

resourced, including approval of the Internal Audit and Compliance Plan and review of 
the Internal Audit and Compliance Report. 

 Oversee hiring and performance of external auditors. 
 Hold meeting with the external auditors for review the annual financial statements 

before submission to the Board for approval. 
 Review along with the management, the annual financial statements before submission 

to the Board for approval. 
 Review along with the management, the quarterly and half yearly financial statements 

before submission to the Board for approval. 
 Review the adequacy of internal audit function. 
 Review the Management’s discussions and analysis before disclosing in the Annual 

Report. 
 Review statement of significant related party transactions submitted by the 

management. 
 Review Management Letters or Letter of Internal Control weakness issued by Statutory 

auditors. 
 Oversee the determination of audit fees based on scope and magnitude, level of 

expertise deployed and time required for effective audit and evaluate the performance 
of external auditors 

 Compliance of all applicable legal and regulatory rules and regulations. 
 Various reports of operational activities and streamlined the operations of the 

Company. 
 The committee reviewed the audit plan for the year 2019-2020 and oversees the 

performance of external auditors. 
 Reviewed compliance of corporate governance guidelines issued by Bangladesh 

Securities and Exchange Commission. 
 

The Audit Committee is of the view that the internal control and procedures are adequate to present a 
true and fair view of the activities and financial status of the Company. 
 
 

 

Place: Dhaka 
Date: October 28, 2020 

On behalf of the Audit Committee 

 
 
 
 

Sd/- 
Kazi Faruq Kader  

Chairman 
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NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE REPORT 
 

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee of Apex Spinning & Knitting Mills Limited is a sub-
committee of the Board of Directors and appointed and authorized by the Board in pursuance of BSEC 
notification to assist the Board in formulation of the nomination criteria or policy for determining 
qualifications, positive attributes, experiences and independence of directors and top level executives. 
 

 

The Board of Directors of Apex Spinning & Knitting Mills Limited has established the Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee comprises of three members on 27th December, 2018, headed by me, Kazi 
Faruq Kader, Independent Director. The other members of the committee are, Mr. Zahur Ahmed PhD 
and Mr. Shahriar Ahmed Directors of the company. 
 

 

During the year 2019-20, one meeting of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee was held on 
20th February, 2020, the details of attendance of each member at the NRC meetings are as follows: 

Name of the Member Position Number of Meeting held Attended 

Mr. Kazi Faruq Kader Chairman 1 1 

Mr. Zahur Ahmed PhD Member 1 1 

Mr. Shahriar Ahmed Member 1 1 

During the year the Nomination and Remuneration Committee oversee the following matters: 

 The level and composition of remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain 
and motivate suitable directors to run the company successfully. 

 The relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets appropriate 
performance benchmark. 

 Remuneration to directors, top level executive involves a balance between fixed and 
incentive pay reflecting short and long-term performance objectives appropriate to the 
working of the company and its goals. 

 Devising a policy on Board’s diversity taking into consideration age, gender, 
experience, ethnicity, educational background and nationality. 

 Identifying person who may be appointed in top level executive position in accordance 
with the criteria laid down, and recommended their appointment and removal to the 
Board. 

 Formulating the criteria for evaluation of performance of independent directors and the 
Board. 

 Identifying the company’s needs for employees at different levels and determine their 
selection, transfer or replacement and promotion criteria and. 

 Developing, recommending and reviewing annually the company’s human resources 
and training policies. 
 

Appointment Criteria and qualifications: 

The Committee shall identify and ascertain the integrity, qualification, expertise and experience of the person 
for appointment as Director, Senior management level and recommend to the board for appointment. 

 

The NRC is responsible to ensure that the procedures for appointing new Directors are transparent. A 
combination of age, gender, experience, ethnicity, educational back ground, nationality and other relevant 
person attributes in the board is important in providing a range of perspectives, insights and challenges 
needed to support right decision making. Recruitment and selection processes for board members identify 
candidates with the most suitable skills, knowledge, experiences and personal values. 

 

Evaluation: 

The committee shall carry out evaluation of performance of independent Directors and the board. The NRC is 
responsible for ensuring the effectiveness of the board. The evaluation includes a review of the administration 
of the Board and its committees covering their operations, agenda, reports and information produced for 
consideration and relationship with Management.  

 

Top level Executive Selection and Remuneration Policy: 

The performance of the Company depends upon the quality of its Directors and Top Level Executives. To 
prosper, the Company must attract, motivate and retain highly skilled Directors and Executives. 
 

The recruitment process for Top Level Executives shall be transparent. 

The objective of remuneration policy is to secure that reward for Top Level Executives shall contribute to 
attracting, engaging and retaining the right employees to deliver sustainable value for shareholders. 

 

Acknowledgement: 

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee expressed of sincere thanks to the Chairman and Members of 
the Board and Management for their support in carrying out its duties and responsibilities. 

 
 

Place: Dhaka  
Date: October 28, 2020 

On behalf of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee 

 Sd/- 
Kazi Faruq Kader  

Chairman 
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Annexure-A 

MD & CFO’s Declaration to the Board of Directors 
 

Date: October 28, 2020  
The Board of Directors 
Apex Spinning & Knitting Mills Limited 
Rupayan Golden Age (5th & 6th Floor) 
99 Gulshan Avenue, Gulshan 
Dhaka-1212, Bangladesh. 
 
Subject: Declaration on Financial Statements for the year ended on June 30, 2020. 
 
Dear Sirs, 
 
Pursuant to the condition No. 1(5)(xxvi) imposed vide the Commission’s Notification No. 
BSEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/207/Admin/80 dated June 03, 2018 under section 2CC of the 
Securities and Exchange Ordinance, 1969, we do hereby declare that: 
 

(1) The Financial Statements of Apex Spinning & Knitting Mills Limited for the year ended 

on June 30, 2020 have been prepared in compliance with International Accounting 

Standards (IAS) or International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), as applicable 

in the Bangladesh and any departure there from has been adequately disclosed; 

(2) The estimates and judgements related to the financial statements were made on a 

prudent and reasonable basis, in order for the financial statements to reveal a true and 

fair view; 

(3) The form and substance of transactions and the Company’s state of affairs have been 

reasonably and fairly presented in its financial statements; 

(4) To ensure above, the Company has taken proper and adequate care in installing a 

system of internal control and maintenance of accounting records; 

(5) Our internal auditors have conducted periodic audits to provide reasonable assurance 

that the established policies and procedures of the Company were consistently 

followed; and  

(6) The management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting in preparing the 

financial statements is appropriate and there exists no material uncertainty related to 

events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to 

continue as a going concern. 

 
In this regard, we also certify that: - 

 

(i) We have reviewed the financial statements for the year ended on June 30, 2020 and 

that to the best of our knowledge and belief: 

(a) these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any 

material fact or contain statements that might be misleading; 

(b) these statements collectively present true and fair view of the Company’s affairs 

and are in compliance with existing accounting standards and applicable laws. 

(ii) There are, to the best of knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the 

Company during the year which are fraudulent, illegal or in violation of the code of 

conduct for the company’s Board of Directors or its members. 

 
Sincerely yours, 
 
Sd/- Sd/- 
Zahur Ahmed PhD 
Managing Director 

Kamruzzaman FCA 
Chief Financial Officer (CFO) 
 



APEX SPINNING & KNITTING MILLS LIMITED                                 Annual Report 2019-2020 

9 

Annexure-B 
 

[Certificate as per condition No. 1(5)(xxvii)] 
 

 

Report to the Shareholders of Apex Spinning & Knitting Mills Limited on 
compliance of Corporate Governance Code 

 
We have examined the compliance status to the Corporate Governance Code by Apex 
Spinning & Knitting Mills Limited for the year ended on June 30, 2020. This code relates to the 
Notification No. BSEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/207/Admin/80 dated June 03, 2018 of the 
Bangladesh Securities and Exchange commission. 
 
Such compliance with the corporate Governance Code is the responsibility of the Company. 
Our examination was limited to the procedures and implementation thereof as adopted by the 
Management in ensuring compliance to the conditions of the Corporate Governance Code. 
 
This is a scrutiny and verification and an independent audit on compliance of the conditions of 
the Corporate Governance Code as well as the provisions of relevant Bangladesh Secretarial 
Standards (BSS) as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Secretaries of Bangladesh (ICSB) in 
so far as those standards are not inconsistent with any condition of this corporate Governance 
Code. 
 
We state that we have obtained all the information and explanations, which we have required, 
and after due scrutiny and verification thereof, we report that, in our opinion: 
 

(a) The company has complied with the conditions of the Corporate Governance Code as 

stipulated on the above mentioned Corporate Governance Code issued by the 

commission; 
 

(b) The company has complied with the provisions of relevant Bangladesh Secretarial 

Standards (BSS) as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Secretaries of Bangladesh 

(ICSB) as required by this Code; 
 

(c) Proper books and records have been kept by the company as required under the 

Companies Act, 1994, the securities laws and other relevant laws; 
 

(d) The governance of the Company is highly satisfactory. 

 
 
 
 
 
Place: Dhaka  Sd/- 
Date: October 28, 2020  Md. Waliullah, FCA 
  Managing Partner 
  Malek Siddiqui Wali 
  Chartered Accountants 
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Annexure-C 
 

Corporate Governance Code Compliance Status 
 
 

Status of compliance with the conditions imposed by the Bangladesh Securities and Exchange 
Commission’s Notification No. BSEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/207/Admin/80 dated 03 June 2018 
issued under section 2CC of the Securities and Exchange Ordinance 1969. 
 

Condition 
No. 

Title Compliance 
Status 

Explanation for non 
compliance with the condition 

1. Board of Directors: 

1.1 Size of the Board of Directors: The 

total number of members of a 
company’s Board of Directors shall not 
be less than 5 (Five) and more than 20 
(Twenty). 

Complied  

1.2 Independent Directors: 

1.2 (a) Independent Directors: At least 1/5th 
(We have four Directors and One 
Independent Director) 

Complied The Independent Director is getting 
remuneration from the company, 
during the year his gross 
remuneration was Tk. 590,000/-. 

1.2 (b)i) Less than 1% Shares Complied  

1.2 (b)ii) Not a Sponsor of The Company or is 
not connected with the Company’s any 
sponsor or Director or  Nominated 
Director or Shareholder. 

Complied  

1.2 (b)iii) Not been an executive of the Company 
immediate preceding 2 financial years. 

 
Complied 

 

1.2 (b)iv) Does not have other relationship Complied  

1.2 (b)v) Not a Member or TREC holder, Director 
or Officer of any Stock Exchange. 

Complied  

1.2 (b)vi) Not a Shareholder, Director excepting 
independent director or Officer of any 
member TREC holder of Stock 
Exchange or an intermediary of the 
capital market. 

Complied  

1.2 (b)vii) Not a Partner or an Executive or was 
not a partner or an Executive during the 
preceding 3 (Three) years of the 
concerned Company’s statutory audit 
firm. 

Complied  

1.2 (b)viii) Not an Independent Director more than 
five listed Companies. 

Complied  

1.2 (b)ix) Not Convicted  by a court of competent 
jurisdiction as a defaulter in payment of 
any loan or any advance to a Bank or a 
Non-Bank Financial Institution (NBFI) 

Complied  

1.2 (b)x) Not convicted for a Criminal offence Complied  

1.2 (c) Appointment by the Board and 
approved in AGM. 

Complied  

1.2 (d) Post cannot remain vacant for more 
than 90 days. 

Complied  

1.2 (e) Tenure of the Independent Director. Complied  

1.3 Qualification of Independent Director: 

1.3 (a) Independent Director shall be 
knowledgeable individual with integrity. 

Complied  

1.3 (b)i) Should be a Business Leader Complied  

1.3 (b)ii) Should be a Corporate Leader Complied  

1.3(b)iii) Former official of government or 
statutory or autonomous or regulatory 
body. 

Complied  

1.3 (b)iv) University Teacher who has educational 
background in Economics or Commerce 
or Business Studies or Law. 

Not Applicable  
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1.3 (b)v) An advocate practicing at least in the 
High Court Division of Bangladesh 
Supreme Court or a Chartered 
Accountant or Cost and Management 
Accountant or Chartered Financial 
Analyst or Chartered Certified 
Accountant or Certified Public 
Accountant or Chartered Management 
Accountant or Chartered Secretary or 
equivalent qualification. 

Not Applicable  

1.3 (c) The independent director shall have at 
least 10 (ten) years of experiences in 
any field mentioned in clause (b) 

Complied  

1.3 (d) Special cases for relaxation of 
qualifications. 

Not Applicable  

1.4 Quality of Chairperson of the Board of Directors and Managing Director or Chief Executive 
Officer: 

1.4(a) The position of the Chairperson of the 
Board and the Managing Director (MD) 
and/or Chief Executive Officer (CEO) of 
the company shall be filled by different 
individuals; 

Complied  

1.4(b) The Managing Director (MD) and/or 
Chief Executive Officer (CEO) of a 
listed company shall not hold the same 
position in another listed company; 

Complied  

1.4 (c)  The Chairperson of the Board shall be 
elected from among the non-executive 
directors of the company; 

Complied  

1.4 (d) The Board shall clearly define 
respective roles and responsibilities of 
the Chairperson and the Managing 
Director and/or chief Executive Officer; 

Complied  

1.4 (e)  In the absence of the Chairperson of 
the Board, the remaining members may 
elect one of themselves from non-
executive directors as Chairperson. 

Not applicable There was no such event during the 
year. 

1.5 The Directors’ Report to Shareholders 

1.5 (i) Industry outlook and possible future 
developments in the industry 

Complied  

1.5 (ii) Segment-wise or product-wise 
performance 

Complied  

1.5 (iii) Risks and concerns Complied Detail discussion are given in 
Director’s Report. 

1.5 (iv) A discussion on Cost of Goods sold, 
Gross Profit Margin and Net Profit 
Margin. 

Complied  

1.5 (v) Discussion on continuity of any Extra-
Ordinary gain or loss. 

Not applicable  

1.5 (vi) Discussion and Basis of related party 
transactions- a statement of all related 
party transactions. 

Complied  

1.5 (vii) Utilization of proceeds from public 
issues, rights issues and/or through any 
others instruments 

Not applicable There was no such event during the 
year. 

1.5 (viii) An explanation if the financial results 
deteriorate after the company goes for 
Initial Public Offering (IPO), Repeat 
Public Offering (RPO), Rights Offer, 
Direct Listing, etc 

Not applicable There was no such event during the 
year. 

1.5 (ix) If significant variance occurs between 
Quarterly Financial performance and 
Annual Financial Statements the 
management shall explain about the 
variance on their Annual Report. 

Complied  

1.5 (x) Statement of Remuneration to directors 
including independent directors. 

Complied  
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1.5 (xi) The financial statements prepared by 
the management of the issuer company 
present fairly its state of affairs, the 
result of its operations, cash flows and 
changes in equity 

Complied  

1.5 (xii) Statement of Proper books of account 
of the issuer company have been 
maintained. 

Complied  

1.5 (xiii) Statement of appropriate accounting 
policies have been consistently applied 
in preparation of the financial 
statements and that the accounting 
estimates are based on reasonable and 
prudent judgment 

Complied  

1.5 (xiv) Statement of IAS/IFRS, as applicable in 
Bangladesh, have been followed in 
preparation of the financial statements 
and any departure there-from has been 
adequately disclosed. 

Complied  

1.5 (xv) Statement of system of internal control 
is sound in design and has been 
effectively implemented and monitored 

Complied  

1.5 (xvi) Statement of minority shareholders 
have been protected from abusive 
actions. 

Not applicable  

1.5 (xvii) Statement of no significant doubts upon 
the issuer company's ability to continue 
as a going concern. If the issuer 
company is not considered to be a 
going concern, the fact along with 
reasons thereof should be disclosed. 

Complied  

1.5 (xviii) An explanation that Significant 
deviations from the last year’s operating 
results of the issuer company shall be 
highlighted and the reasons thereof 
should be explained. 

Not applicable  

1.5 (xix) Statement of Key operating and 
financial data of at least preceding 5 
(five) years shall be summarized. 

Complied  

1.5 (xx) An explanation on the reasons if the 
issuer company has not declared 
dividend (cash or stock) for the year, 
the  reasons thereof shall be given. 

Not applicable  

1.5 (xxi) Board’s statement to the effect that no 
bonus share or stock dividend has been 
or shall be declared as interim dividend. 

Not applicable  

1.5 (xxii) The total number of Board meetings 
held during the year and attendance by 
each Director. 

Complied  

1.5 (xxiii) A report on the pattern of the shareholding: 

1.5 (xxiii)a) Parent/Subsidiary/Associated 
Companies and other related parties 
(name wise details); 

Complied  

1.5 (xxiii)b) Directors, Chief Executive Officer, 
Company Secretary, Chief Financial 
Officer, Head of Internal Audit & 
Compliance and their spouses and 
minor children (name 
wise details); 

Complied  

1.5 (xxiii)c) Executives; Complied  

1.5 (xxiii)d) Shareholders holding ten percent (10%) 
or more voting interest in the company 
(name wise details). 

Complied  

1.5 (xxiv)a) A brief resume of the director; Complied  

1.5 (xxiv)b) Nature of his/her expertise in specific 
functional areas; 

Complied  

1.5 (xxiv)c) Names of companies in which the 
person also holds the directorship and 
the membership of committees of the 
board. 

Complied  
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1.5 (xxv) Management Discussion and Analysis signed by MD: 

1.5 (xxv)a) Accounting policies and estimation for 
preparation of financial statements. 

Complied  

1.5 (xxv)b) Changes in accounting policies and 
estimation, if any, clearly describing the 
effect on financial performance or 
results and financial position as well as 
cash flows in absolute figure for such 
changes; 
 

Complied  

1.5(xxv)c) Comparative analysis (including effects 
of inflation) of financial performance or 
result and financial position as well as 
cash flows for current financial year with 
immediate preceding five years 
explaining reasons thereof 

Complied  

1.5 (xxv)d) Compare such financial performance or 
results and financial position as well as 
cash flows with the peer industry 
scenario; 
 

Complied  

1.5 (xxv)e) Briefly explain the financial and 
economic scenario of the country and 
the globe; 
 

Complied  

1.5 (xxv)f) Risks and concerns issues related to 
the financial statements, explaining 
such risk and concern mitigation plan of 
the company. 

Complied  

1.5 (xxv)g) Future plan or projection or forecast for 
company’s operation, performance and 
financial position, with justification 
thereof, i.e., actual position shall be 
explained to the shareholders in the 
next AGM. 

Complied  

1.5 (xxvi) Declaration or certification by the CEO 
and CFO to the Board as required 
under condition No. 3(3) shall be 
disclosed as per Annexure-A;  

Complied  

1.5(xxvii) The report as well as certificate 
regarding compliance of conditions of 
this Code as required under condition 
No. 9 shall be disclosed as per 
Annexure-B and Annexure-C. 

Complied  

1.6 Meeting of the Board of Directors: 

The company shall conduct its Board 
meetings and record the minutes of the 
meetings as well as keep required 
books and records in line with the 
provisions of the relevant Bangladesh 
Secretarial Standards (BSS) as adopted 
by the Institute of Chartered Secretaries 
of Bangladesh (ICSB) in so far as those 
standards are not inconsistent with any 
condition of this Code. 

Complied  

1.7 Code of Conduct for the Chairperson, other Board members and Chief Executive Officer 

1.7 (a) The Board shall lay down a code of 
conduct, based on the recommendation 
of the Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee (NRC) at condition No. 6, for 
the Chairperson of the Board, other 
board members and Chief Executive 
Officer of the company; 

Not Complied Development of code of conduct is 
under development process, it will be 
incorporated by committee in 
uncoming meeting. 
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1.7 (b) The code of conduct as determined by 
the NRC shall be posted on the website 
of the company including, among 
others, prudent conduct and behavior; 
confidentiality conflict of interest; 
compliance with laws, rules and 
regulations; prohibition of insider 
trading; relationship with environment, 
employees, customers and suppliers; 
and independency. 

Not Complied Development of code of conduct is 
under development process, it will be 
incorporated by committee in 
uncoming meeting. 

2 Governance of Board of Directors of Subsidiary Company: 

2(a) Provisions relating to the composition of 
the Board of the holding company shall 
be made applicable to the composition 
of the Board of the subsidiary company; 

Not Applicable There is no subsidiary company. 

2(b) At least 1 (one) independent director on 
the Board of the holding company shall 
be a director on the Board of the 
subsidiary company;  

Not Applicable There is no subsidiary company. 

2(c)  The minutes of the Board Meeting of 
the subsidiary company shall be placed 
for review at the following Board 
meeting of the holding company; 

Not Applicable There is no subsidiary company. 

2(d) The minutes of the respective Board 
meeting of the holding company shall 
state that they have reviewed the affairs 
of the subsidiary company also; 

Not Applicable There is no subsidiary company. 

2(e) The Audit Committee of the holding 
company shall also review the financial 
statements, in particular the 
investments made by the subsidiary 
company. 

Not Applicable There is no subsidiary company. 

3 MANAGING DIRECTOR (MD) or CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER (CEO), CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER (CFO), 
HEAD OF INTERNAL AUDIT AND COMPLIANCE (HIAC) AND COMPANY SECRETARY (CS): 

3.1 Appointment 

3.1(a) The Board shall appoint a Managing 
Director (MD) or Chief Executive Officer 
(CEO), a Company Secretary (CS), a 
Chief Financial Officer (CFO), a Head of 
Internal Audit and Compliance (HIAC); 

Complied   

3.1(b) The positions of the Managing Director 
(MD) or Chief Executive Officer (CEO), 
Company Secretary (CS), Chief 
Financial Officer (CFO), Head of 
Internal Audit and Compliance (HIAC) 
shall be filled by different individuals; 

Complied   

3.1(c)  The MD or CEO, CS, CFO and HIAC of 
a listed company shall not hold any 
executive position in any other company 
at the same time; 

Complied   

3.1(d) The Board shall clearly define 
respective roles, responsibilities and 
duties of the CFO, the HIAC and the 
CS; 

Complied  

3.1(e) The MD or CEO, CS, CFO and HIAC 
shall not be removed from their position 
without approval of the Board as well as 
immediate dissemination to the 
Commission and stock exchange(s). 

Not Applicable There was no such event during the 
year. 

3.2 Requirement to attend Board of 
Director’ Meetings: 
 

The MD or CEO, CS, CFO and HIAC 
shall attend the meetings of the Board: 
 

Provided that CS, CFO and HIAC shall 
not attend such part of a meeting if the 
Board of Directors which involves 
consideration of an agenda item relating 
to their personal matters. 

Complied   
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3.3 Duties of Managing Director (MD) or Chief Executive Officer (CEO) and Chief Financial 

Officer (CFO) 

3.3(a) The MD or CEO and CFO shall certify to the Board that 
they have reviewed financial statements for the year and 
that to the best of their knowledge and belief; 

 

3.3(a)i) These statements do not contain any 
materially untrue statement or omit any 
material fact or contain statements that 
might be misleading; and 
 

Complied  

3.3(a)ii) These statements together present a 
true and fair view of the company’s 
affairs and are in compliance with 
existing accounting standards and 
applicable laws; 

Complied  

3.3(b) The MD or CEO and CFO shall also 
certify that there are, to the best of 
knowledge and belief, no transactions 
entered into by the company during the 
year which are fraudulent, illegal or in 
violation of the code of conduct for the 
company’s Board or its members; 

Complied  

3.3(c) The certification of the MD or CEO and 
CFO shall be disclosed in the Annual 
Report. 

Complied  

4 Board of Directors’ Committee:- 

4(i) Audit Committee Complied  

4(ii) Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee 

Complied   

5 AUDIT COMMITTEE: 

5.1 Responsibility to the Board of Directors 

5.1(a) The company shall have an Audit 
Committee as a sub-committee of the 
Board. 

Complied  

5.1(b) The Audit Committee shall assist the 
Board in ensuring that the financial 
statements reflect true and fair view of 
the state of affairs of the company and 
in ensuring a good monitoring system 
within the business 

Complied  

5.1(c) The Audit Committee shall be 
responsible to the Board. The duties of 
the Audit Committee shall be clearly set 
forth in writing. 

Complied  

5.2 Constitution of the Audit Committee 

5.2(a) The Audit Committee shall be 
composed of at least 3 (three) members 

Complied  

5.2(b) The Board shall appoint members of the 
Audit Committee who shall be non-
executive directors of the company 
excepting Chairperson of the Board and 
shall include at least 1 (one) 
independent director; 

Complied  

5.2(c) All members of the audit committee 
should be “financially literate” and at 
least 1 (one) member shall have 
accounting or related financial 
management background and 10 (ten) 
years of such experience. 

Complied  

5.2(d) When the term of service of the 
Committee members expires or there is 
any circumstance causing any 
Committee member to be unable to 
hold office before expiration of the term 
of service. 

Not applicable There was no such event during the 
year. 

5.2(e) The company secretary shall act as the 
secretary of the Committee 

Complied  
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5.2(f) The quorum of the Audit Committee 

meeting shall not constitute without at 
least 1(one) independent director 

Complied There was no such event during the 
year. 

5.3 Chairperson of the Audit Committee 

5.3(a) The Board of Directors shall select 1 
(one) member of the Audit Committee 
to be Chairperson of the Audit 
Committee, who shall be an 
independent director. 

Complied  

5.3(b) In the absence of the Chairperson of 
the Audit Committee, the remaining 
members may elect one of themselves 
as Chairperson for that particular 
meeting, in that case there shall be no 
problem of constituting a quorum as 
required under condition No. 5(4)(b) 
and the reason of absence of the 
regular Chairperson shall be duly 
recorded in the minutes. 

Not Applicable There was no such event during the 
year. 

5.3(c) Chairperson of the audit committee 
shall remain present in the Annual 
General Meeting (AGM). 

Complied  

5.4 Meeting of the Audit Committee 

5.4(a) The Audit Committee shall conduct at 
least its four meetings in a financial 
year: 

Complied  

5.4(b) The quorum of the meeting of the Audit 
Committee shall be constituted in 
presence of either two members or two 
third of the members of the Audit 
Committee, whichever is higher, where 
presence of an independent director is 
a must. 

Complied There was no such event during the 
year. 

5.5 Role of Audit Committee 

5.5(a) Oversee the financial reporting process Complied  

5.5(b) Monitor choice of accounting policies 
and principles. 

Complied  

5.5(c) Monitor Internal Audit and Compliance 
process to ensure that it is adequately 
resourced, including approval of the 
Internal Audit and Compliance Plan and 
review of the Internal Audit and 
Compliance Report; 

Complied  

5.5(d) Oversee hiring and performance of 
external auditors 

Complied  

5.5(e) Hold meeting with the external or 
statutory auditors for review of the 
annual financial statements before 
submission to the Board for approval or 
adoption. 

Complied  

5.5(f) Review along with the management, the 
annual financial statements before 
submission to the board for approval. 

Complied  

5.5(g) Review along with the management, the 
quarterly and half yearly financial 
statements before submission to the 
board for approval. 

Complied  

5.5(h) Review the adequacy of internal audit 
function. 

Complied  

5.5(i) Review the Management’s Discussion 
and analysis before disclosing in the 
Annual Report; 

Complied  

5.5(j) Review statement of significant related 
party transactions submitted by the 
management 

Complied  

5.5(k) Review Management Letters or Letter 
of Internal Control weakness issued by 
statutory auditors. 

Not applicable  
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5.5(l) Oversee the determination of audit fees 

based on scope and magnitude, level of 
expertise deployed and time required 
for effective audit and evaluate the 
performance of external auditors; and 

Complied  

5.5(m) Oversee whether the proceeds raised 
through Initial Public Offering (IPO) or 
Repeat Public Offering (RPO) or Rights 
Share Offer have been utilized as per 
the purposes stated in relevant offer 
document or prospectus approved by 
the Commission: 

Not applicable  

5.6 Reporting of the Audit Committee 

5.6(a) Reporting to the Board  of Directors 

5.6.a(i) The Audit Committee shall report on its 
activities to the Board. 

Complied  

5.6.a(ii)a) report on conflicts of interests; Not applicable There was no such event to 
report 

5.6.a(ii)b) Suspected or presumed fraud or 
irregularity or material defect in the 
internal control system; 

Not applicable There was no such event to 
report 

5.6.a(ii)c) Suspected infringement of laws, 
including securities related laws, rules 
and regulations; 

Not applicable There was no such event to 
report 

5.6.a(ii)d) Any other matter which shall be 
disclosed to the Board Immediately. 

Not applicable There was no such event to 
report 

5.6(b) Reporting to the Authorities 
 

Not applicable There was no such event to 
report 

5.7 Reporting to the Shareholders and 
General Investors. 

Not applicable There was no such event to 
report 

6 Nomination and Remuneration Committee(NRC) 
6.1 Responsibilities to the Board of Directors: 
6.1(a) The Company shall have a Nomination 

and Remuneration Committee (NRC) as 
a subcommittee of the Board; 

Complied  

6.1(b) The NRC shall assist the Board in 
formulation of the nomination criteria or 
policy for determining qualifications, 
positive attributes, experiences and 
independence of directors and top level 
executive as well as a policy for formal 
process of considering remuneration of 
directors, top level executive; 

Complied  

6.1(c) The Terms of Reference (ToR) of the 
NRC shall be clearly set forth in writing 
covering the areas stated at the 
condition No. 6.5(b) 

Complied  

6.2 Constitution of the NRC: 
    

6.2(a) The Committee shall comprise of at 
least 3 (three) members including an 
independent director. 

Complied  

6.2(b) All members of the Committee shall be 
non-executive directors; 

Not Complied Two members of committee are 
executive director. 

6.2(c)  Members of the Committee shall be 
nominated and appointed by the Board; 

Complied  

6.2(d) The Board shall have authority to 
remove and appoint any member of the 
Committee; 

Complied  

6.2(e) In case of death, resignation, 
disqualification, or removal of any 
member of the Committee or in any 
other case of Vacancies, the boards 
shall fill the vacancy within 180 (one 
hundred eighty) days of occurring such 
vacancy in the Committee; 

Not applicable There was no such event to 
report 
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6.2(f) The Chairperson of the Committee may 

appoint or co-opt any external expert 
and/or member(s) of staff to the 
Committee as advisor who shall be non-
voting member, if the Chairperson feels 
that advice or suggestion from such 
external expert and/or or member(s) of 
staff shall be required or valuable for 
the Committee; 

Not applicable There was no such event to 
report 

6.2(g) The company secretary shall act as the 
secretary of the Committee; 

Complied  

6.2(h) The quorum of the NRC meeting shall 
not constitute without attendance of at 
least an independent director; 

Not applicable There was no such event during the 
year. 

6.2(i) No member of the NRC shall receive, 
either directly or indirectly, any 
remuneration for any advisory or 
consultancy role or otherwise, other 
than Director’s fees or honorarium from 
the company. 

Not Complied Details of remuneration are given 
in the note 33 of annual financial 
statements.   

6.3 Chairperson of the NRC 
6.3(a) The Board shall select 1 (one) member 

of the NRC to be Chairperson of the 
Committee, who shall be an 
independent director; 

Complied  

6.3(b) In the absence of the Chairperson of 
the NRC, the remaining members may 
elect one of themselves as Chairperson 
for that particular meeting, the reason of 
absence of the regular Chairperson 
shall be duly recorded in the minutes; 

N/A There was no such event during the 
year. 

6.3(c) The Chairperson of the NRC shall 
attend the Annual General Meeting 
(AGM) to answer the queries of the 
shareholders: 

Complied  

6.4 Meeting of the NRC 
6.4(a) The NRC shall conduct at least one 

meeting in a financial year; 
Complied  

6.4(b) The Chairperson of the NRC may 
convene any emergency meeting upon 
request by any member of the NRC; 

Not applicable There was no such event with in 
the report period 

6.4(c)  The quorum of the meeting of the NRC 
shall be constituted in presence of 
either two members or two third of the 
members of the Committee, whichever 
is higher where presence of an 
independent director is must as 
required under condition No. 6(2)(h); 

Complied  

6.4(d) The proceedings of each meeting of the 
NRC shall duly be recorded in the 
minutes and such minutes shall be 
confirmed in the next meeting of the 
NRC. 

Complied  

6.5 Role of the NRC 
6.5(a) NRC shall be independent and 

responsible or accountable to the Board 
and to the shareholders; 

Not Complied  

6.5(b) NRC shall oversee, among others, the following matters and make report with 
recommendation to the Board: 

6.5(b)i) Formulating the criteria for determining 
qualifications, positive attributes and 
independence of a director and 
recommend a policy to the Board, 
relating to the remuneration of the 
directors, top level executive, 
considering the following: 

Complied  
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6.5(b)i)a) The level and composition of 

remuneration is reasonable and 
sufficient to attract, retain and motivate 
suitable directors to run the company 
successfully. 

Complied  

6.5(b)i)b) The relationship of remuneration to 
performance is clear and meets 
appropriate performance benchmark; 

Complied  

6.5(b)i)c) Remuneration to directors, top level 
executive involves a balance between 
fixed and incentive pay reflecting short 
and long-term performance objectives 
appropriate to the working of the 
company and its goals 

Complied  

6.5(b)ii) Devising a policy on Board’s diversity 
taking into consideration age, gender, 
experience, ethnicity, educational 
background and nationality; 

Complied  

6.5(b)iii) Identifying person who are qualified to 
become directors and who may be 
appointed in top level executive position 
in accordance with the criteria laid 
down, and recommended their 
appointment and removal to the Board; 

Complied  

6.5(b)iv) Formulating the criteria for evaluation of 
performance of independent directors 
and the Board; 

Complied  

6.5(b)v) Identifying the company’s needs for 
employees at different levels and 
determine their selection, transfer or 
replacement and promotion criteria; and 

Complied  

6.5(b)vi) Developing, recommending and 
reviewing annually the company’s 
human resources and training policies; 

Complied  

6.5(c) The company shall disclose the 
nomination and remuneration policy and 
the evaluation criteria and activities of 
NRC during the year at a glance in its 
annual report. 

Complied  

7 EXTERNAL OR STATUTORY AUDITORS: 

7.1 The issuer Company shall not engage its external or 
statutory auditors to perform the following services of the 
Company, namely: 

 

7.1(i) Appraisal or valuation services or 
fairness opinions. 

Complied  

7.1(ii) Financial information systems design 
and implementation 

Complied  

7.1(iii) Book-keeping or other services related 
to the accounting records or financial 
statements 

Complied  

7.1(iv) Broker-dealer services Complied  

7.1(v) Actuarial services. Complied  

7.1(vi) Internal audit services. Complied  

7.1(vii) Any service that the Audit Committee 
determines. 

Complied  

7.1(viii) Audit or certification services on 
compliance of corporate governance as 
required under condition No 9(1); and 

Complied  

7.1(ix) Any other service that creates conflict of 
interest. 

Complied  
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7.2 No partner or employees of the external 
audit firms shall possess any share of 
the company they audit at least during 
the tenure of their audit assignment of 
that company; his or her family 
members also shall not hold any shares 
in the said company: 
 
Provided that spouse, son, daughter, 
father, mother, brother, sister, son-in-
law and daughter-in-law shall be 
considered as family members. 

Complied  

7.3 Representative of external or statutory 
auditors shall remain present in the 
Shareholders’ Meeting (annual General 
Meeting or Extraordinary General 
Meeting) to answer the queries of the 
shareholders. 

Complied  

8 Maintaining a website by the Company 

8.1 The company shall have an official 
website linked with the website of the 
stock exchange. 

Complied  

8.2 The company shall keep the website 
functional from the date of listing. 

Complied  

8.3 The company shall make available the 
detailed disclosures on its website as 
required under the listing regulations of 
the concerned stock exchange(s). 

Complied  

9 REPORTING AND COMPLIANCE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE: 

9.1 The company shall obtain a certificate 
from a practicing professional 
Accountant or Secretary (Chartered 
Accountant or Cost & Management 
Account or  Chartered Secretary) other 
than its statutory auditors or audit firm 
on yearly basis regarding compliance of 
conditions of Corporate Governance 
Code of the Commission and shall such 
certificate shall be disclosed in the 
Annual Report. 

Complied  

9.2 The professional who will provide the 
certificate on compliance of this 
Corporate Governance Code shall be 
appointed by the shareholders in the 
annual general meeting. 

Complied  

9.3 The directors of the company shall 
state, in accordance with the 
Annexure-C attached, in the directors' 

report whether the company has 
complied with these conditions or not. 

Complied  
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MESSAGE FROM THE CHAIRMAN 

 

Dear Shareholders, 
 
It is an honor and pleasure for me to welcome you all to the Twenty-ninth Annual General Meeting 
of your Company and to present the Annual Report for the year ended June 30, 2020.  
 
Global Economy: 

In the second half of 2019, trade policy uncertainty and geopolitical tensions continued to weigh on 
global economic activity—especially manufacturing and trade. Intensifying social unrest in several 
countries posed new challenges, as did weather-related disasters—from hurricanes in the 
Caribbean to drought and bushfires in Australia, floods in eastern Africa, and drought in southern 
Africa. Despite these, some indications emerged toward the year-end that global growth may be 
bottoming out.  

At the beginning of the year 2020, the world experienced a new pandemic. The COVID-19 is 
inflicting high, and the necessary protection measures severely impact economic activity. Most 
countries imposed stringent lockdown measures in the first half of 2020 to contain the coronavirus 
pandemic and protect susceptible populations. Meanwhile, economic activity contracted 
dramatically on a global scale. As a result, the global economy is projected to shrink by 3% in 
2020. The effect will be much worse than during the 2008–09 financial crisis.  

Although easing lockdowns can lead to a partial recovery, economic activity is likely to remain 
subdued until health risks subside. The necessary measures to reduce infection and protect lives 
are crucial investments in long-term human and economic health. Because the economic fallout is 
acute in specific sectors, policymakers will need to implement substantial targeted fiscal, 
monetary, and financial measures to support affected households and businesses domestically.  

Bangladesh Economy:  
 
The effects of Coronavirus are already being observed in the Bangladesh economy. There has 
been negative growth in import and export trade in FY2019-20. However, the remittance flow 
growth has been positive, with 10.87 percent growth during the fiscal year. Besides, the current 
account deficit has narrowed during FY2019-20. 
 
Moreover, the surplus of the overall balance of the BOP significantly increased the foreign 
exchange reserves, and as of June 30, 2020, it stood at US$ 36 billion. The exchange rate of 
Taka, especially the exchange rate of Taka with the US dollar, was stable. Inflation was also under 
control during this fiscal year due to modest production in the agricultural sector. The Government 
announced an incentive package of about 1.2 lakh crore taka to address the worldwide crisis and 
keep its economy moving and bringing it back on track. The incentive package announced is 4.3 
percent of GDP.  
 
As a result, the Bangladesh economy trend has started a turnaround towards the growth 
trajectory. Bangladesh's GDP growth rate for the year 2019 was 8.15%, and in this pandemic year, 
the economy is expected to grow around 6.50%. Despite all these hurdles, this is a good sign 
compared with the other countries.    
 
My sincere thanks to all the respectable Shareholders for extending their continuous support and 
confidence in the Board of Directors of your Company. I also like to put on record my sincere 
appreciation to the Banks, Financial and Regulatory Agencies, Suppliers, Customers, various 
people with whom we have interacted in the course of business, management staff, and members 
of the Company at all levels for their cooperation and sincere efforts in the growth of your 
Company. 
 
 
Place: Dhaka                                                                      
Date: October 28, 2020 

Sd/- 
Zafar Ahmed 

Chairman 
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Managing Director’s Statement 
 

Management’s discussion and analysis of the Company’s position and operations along with a 
brief discussion of changes in the financial statements as per condition no. 1.5(XXV) of Corporate 
Governance Code dated June 03, 2018: 
 
(a) Accounting policies and estimation for preparation of financial statements: 

These Financial Statements have been prepared under the Historical Cost Convention, Accrual and 
Going Concern basis in accordance with applicable International Accounting Standards (IASs) and 
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) which does not vary from the requirements of the 
Companies Act, 1994 and the Listing Regulations of the Stock Exchanges, The Securities & Exchange 
Rules, 1987 and other laws and rules applicable in Bangladesh. The following IASs & IFRSs as 
applicable for the financial statements for the year under review: 

 IAS-1  Presentation of financial statements 
 IAS-2    Inventories 
 IAS-7    Statement of Cash Flows   
 IAS-8    Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors 
 IAS-10 Events after the Reporting Period 
 IAS-12 Income Taxes 
 IAS-16   Property, Plant and Equipment 
 IAS-21   The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates 
 IAS-23   Borrowing Costs 
 IAS-24   Related Party Disclosures 
 IAS-33   Earnings Per Share 
 IAS-36 Impairment of Assets 
 IAS-37   Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets 
 IFRS-07   Financial Instruments: Disclosure 
 IFRS-09   Financial Instruments 
 IFRS-15   Revenue from Contracts with Customers 
 IFRS-16   Leases 
  

(b) Changes in accounting policies and estimation: 

There was no change in accounting policies and estimation during the year under review. 
 

(c) Comparative analysis of financial performance or results and financial position as well 
as cash flows for current financial year with immediate preceding five years explaining 
reasons: 

“Figure in thousand Taka” 

Particulars 2019-20 2018-19 2017-18 2016-17    2015-16** 2014-15 

Key Operational and Financial Data:      

       
Revenue 2,751,013 3,537,790 3,633,663  3,205,557   4,319,335   2,989,846  
Gross Profit  222,226 287,345  289,542   245,333   338,619      243,140  
Operating Profit/(Loss)  83,128 127,216 62,859   43,166    53,366        31,823  
Profit before Tax 30,701 55,690  62,411    47,270   56,012        35,921  
Net Profit/(Loss) after Tax 12,428 27,223  24,021   23,163    28,765        23,204  
Total Assets 1,280,118 1,387,062  1,465,206  1,325,340   1,461,496   1,374,272  
Total Liabilities 825,051 919,169 1,002,783 882,050 1,027,440 954,093 
Current Assets 963,154 1,057,297  1,107,179   994,046   1,183,939   1,072,153  
Current Liabilities 767,460 909,740 996,404 878,212 1,023,537 952,091 
Reserve and Surplus  345,849 350,221   339,632   329,964  325,388      313,838  
Share Holder’s Equity  455,067 467,893  462,423  443,183   434,056      420,179  
Current Ratio 1.25 1.16 1.11 

 
1.13 1.16 1.13 

Net Asset Value (NAV) per Share 54.17 55.70 55.05 52.77 51.67 50.02 
Earnings Per Share (EPS) 1.48 3.24 2.86 2.76 3.42 2.76 
NOCFPS 0.66 20.94 (10.31) 14.23 25.20 (1.79) 

**fifteen (15) months period. 
 

Apex Spinning & Knitting Mills Ltd is continuing its growth from the year 2016-2017 to 2017-
2018 & slightly decreased in 2018-19 but revenue for the year 2019-2020 has fallen 22.24%   
due to effect of COVID-19 in worldwide, as a result its gross profit margin, profit before tax & 
net profit after tax have been decreased. In spite of continuing COVID-19, management of 
ASKML to keep the factory running, not sack workers/employees & to pay their wages/salaries 
in time. Thus there was significant variance in net operating cash flows. The Net Operating 
Cash Flows per Share are positive/negative and are different in every financial year as this 
depends on different issues mainly, collection from revenue and payment for costs and 
expenses. This scenario is changeable time to time depending on different issues. 
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(d) Compare such financial performance or results and financial position as well as cash 

flows with the peer industry scenario: 
“Figure in Million Taka” 

Particulars 
Apex Spinning 
& Knitting Mills 

Ltd 2019-20 
2017-18 

Paramount 
Textile Ltd 

2018-19 

Evince Textile Ltd  
2018-19 

Operational and Financial Data:   

    
Revenue 2,751.01 5673.85 1826.67 
Gross Profit  222.23 855.04 383.55 
Profit before Tax 30.70 465.40 181.38 
Net Profit/(Loss) after Tax 12.43 411.55 145.18 
Earnings Per Share (EPS) 1.48 3.04 0.92 
NOCFPS 0.66 4.36 2.49 

 

 
(e) Briefly explain the financial and economic scenario of the country and the globe: 

Exporting of Garments is the backbone of Bangladesh’s industrial sector, accounted for more 
than 80% of manufacturing income & around 4 (four) million workers are served in this sector. 
COVID-19 has triggered the deepest global recession in dacades. While the ultimate 
outcomes are still uncertain, the pandemic will result in contractions across the vast majority of 
emerging market of global & national and developing the economy. During the financial year 
2019-2020, Govt has revised its GDP growth rate for long time lockdown through the country 
due to COVID-19 pandemic. Government of Bangladesh has provided stimulus package in 
most of the economy sectors specially in garments sector. 

 

 
(f) Risk and concerns including internal and external factors and its mitigation plan of the 

company is stated below:  

The similar challenges are facing all the sectors of textile industry. Among others, working 
capital fund crisis due to keep the factory running & not sack workers & employees, lack of 
energy including its price hike, labour unrest, increase of raw materials, cost of fund, very short 
lead time to deliver finished goods. Now a day, workers are facing health risk due to covid-19 
pandemic. Otherwise, to meet environmental and compliance requirements has caused a shift 
in selecting eco-friendly chemicals which are expensive. The company also aware of some 
financial risk including market risk, credit risk, interest rate risk and currency risk. Now, Market 
risk is most important issue for external factors. To minimize these exposure, the company has 
taken extra initiative ie for market risk, regular communicate with all related concerns, for credit 
risk, monitored on an ongoing basis and for interest rate risk, the company has not entered 
into any type of derivative instrument in order to hedge interest rate risk at the reporting date 
but company has taken stimulus package loan at lower charges to pay the last three months’ 
wages of workers. 
 

 

(g) Future plan: 

The pandemic of COVID-19 has been effected in all over world from the middle of this financial 
year 2019-2020. The foreign buyers have cancelled & hold contracts indiscriminately & these 
effects are continuing. In spite of these, Apex Spinning & Knitting Mills Limited (ASKML) is 
committed to continue its production, regular payment the salary & wages, to meetup the 
interest of all stakeholders, to safeguard the health measure of all employees, to upgrade the 
capital assets & its modification and to take a proper plan to control & design inventory. 
ASKML is also planning to overcome the second wave of COVID-19. However, company 
improves the efficiency of human resources by proper training and update the fashion design 
center due to rapidly change the buyers fashion & choices 

 
 
 

Place: Dhaka  Sd/- 
Date: October 28, 2020  Zahur Ahmed PhD 
  Managing Director 
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS 

Dear Shareholders, 
 
The Directors are pleased to submit to you the Annual Report together with the Auditors’ Report 
and Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended June 30, 2020. 
 
The Directors’ Report is prepared in compliance with Section 184 of the Companies Act 1994 and 
Bangladesh Securities & Exchange Commission’s (BSEC) notification no- BSEC/CMRRCD/2006-
158/207/Admin/80 dated 3 June 2018.  
 
(i) Industry outlook and possible future developments in the industry: 

 
Economic growth slumped to an over 10-year low in FY 2019-20, as the pandemic 
hammered both domestic activity and the external sector. Exports and industrial output 
collapsed at an unprecedented rate in Q2 CY 2020, reflecting a slump in foreign demand 
and spearheading the overall downturn.   
 
Growth is expected to pick up some steam in July as foreign demand gradually recovers 
from the Covid-19-induced shock, while supportive fiscal and monetary stimulus measures 
reinforce the domestic market, with more robust growth expected in the upcoming Christmas 
season. But due to the second wave of Covid-19, countries have begun to impose more 
stringent measures to tackle the pandemic. The effect of the Coronavirus is going to last 
long. We need to be cautious about the future economic trend unless there is a vaccine to 
tackle COVID-19.     
 

(ii) Segment-wise or product-wise performance: 
 
As Apex Spinning & Knitting Mills Limited produces only Readymade Garment, there is no 
scope for Product-wise performance reporting. However, country-wise export details are 
given in note 29 of the Annual Report.  

 
(iii) Risks and concerns: 

 
Bangladesh's readymade garments sector accounts for around 80% of the country's 
manufacturing income, with at least 4 million workers depending on it.  
 
The coronavirus pandemic is taking a toll on Bangladesh, the world's second-largest 
garment exporter. Although the number of COVID-19 cases is not too high in the South 
Asian country, the pandemic poses a significant risk to this sector and garment workers' 
livelihood. The industry is losing orders, and millions of jobs are at stake.  
 
The country's garment sector depends hugely on export orders, which have drastically 
decreased due to the rise of the Coronavirus cases worldwide. So far, Bangladesh has lost 
around $1.5 billion, which has impacted some 1.2 million workers. Foreign brands are 
increasingly delaying and canceling orders. The USA and Europe are Bangladesh's biggest 
garment export markets, with almost 60% of total consumption, and currently preparing to 
face the second wave of Covid-19. It will take some time to recover and gain momentum 
again.   

 
(iv) Discussion on Cost of Goods Sold, Gross Profit Margin and Net Profit Margin: 

 
(a) Cost of Goods Sold: 

The reporting period’s cost of goods sold was Tk. 2,529 million as compared to last 
year’s cost of goods sold of Tk. 3,250 million. This is because there has been decrease 
in the gross turnover during the reporting period. During the reporting period 1,996,387 
dozens of garments were produced as against last year’s production of 2,533,522 dozen. 
The decrease in production quantity is 537,135 dozen over the last year. Production 
capacity utilized during the reporting period was 71.30%. There was an increase in 
Wages and Salaries to the tune of Tk. 21.48 million as against last year.   
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(b) Gross Profit: 

The company has achieved an export turnover of Tk. 2,751.01 million during the year 
ended 30th June 2020. Last year’s turnover was Tk. 3,537.79 million. The decrease in 
turnover is 22.24% over the last year. Gross profit earned during the period was Tk. 
222.23 million as against last year’s gross profit of Tk. 287.34 million.   
 

(c) Net Profit: 
Net profit (after tax) earned during the period was Tk. 12.43 million as compared to last 
year’s Net Profit (after tax) of Tk. 27.22 million. There is significant difference from last 
year’s net profit due to COVID-19.    
 

(v) Extra-Ordinary gain or loss: 
 
During the year there was no realized extra-ordinary gain/(loss) made by the company. An 
amount of Tk. (8.45) million has been shown as Fair Valuation surplus/(deficit) for 
Investment in the Statement of Comprehensive Income which represents the difference 
between the closing price of investment in the Shares of Apex Foods Limited and the price 
shown in the last Statement of Financial Position. This accounting effect was given in order 
to comply with the latest requirement of International Accounting Standards (IAS) / 
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS). Details are given in Note 21 of the 
Annual Report.    

 
(vi) Related Party Transactions: 

Apex Spinning & Knitting Mills Limited has few transactions with Apex Yarn Dyeing Limited 
and   Matex Bangladesh Limited with common director. These transactions are considered as 
related party transactions as per IAS 24 "Related Party Disclosures". The transactions are 
occurred during the period with an arm’s length price as per normal business policy for buying 
& selling of dyes & chemical and yarn dyeing. The details are given below: 
                                                                                                                                             2019-2020 

 Name of the Parties Opening 
Balance 

Purchase 
during the Year 

Paid during the 
Year 

Closing 
Balance  

 i. Matex Bangladesh Ltd. - 119,843,442 119,843,442 - 

 ii. Apex Yarn Dyeing Ltd. - 21,963,627 21,963,627 - 

              

(vii) Utilization of proceeds from public issues and/ or rights issues:  
 
There was no public issues and/ or right issue offered during the year.  

 
(viii) Financial results after the company goes for Initial Public Offering (IPO), Repeat 

Public Offering (RPO), Rights Offer, Direct Listing, etc.:  
 
Initial Public Offering was made on February 10, 1994. Since then the company is 
performing well.  

 
(ix) Variance between Quarterly Financial performance and Annual Financial Statements: 

  
Significant decrease in EPS (i.e. up to 3rd Quarter, EPS from operational activities was Tk. 
1.99 but annually it has been Tk. 1.48) is mainly for decrease of turnover in 4th quarter of 2019-
2020 due to COVID-19 in worldwide.  

 
(x) Remuneration to directors including independent directors: 

The remunerations of Directors including Independent Director are as follows: 
 

Name of the Directors Director / Independent Director Yearly Remuneration 

Mr. Zahur Ahmed PhD Director  1,770,000 
Mr. Shahriar Ahmed Director  1,180,000 
Mr. Kazi Faruq Kader Independent Director    590,000 

 
(xi) The financial statements prepared by the management of the company present fairly its state 

of affairs, the result of its operations, cash flows and changes in equity. 
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(xii) Proper books of account of the company have been maintained. 

 
(xiii) Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied in preparation of the financial 

statements and that the accounting estimates are based on reasonable and prudent 
judgment. 

 
(xiv) International Accounting Standards (IASs) & International Financial Reporting Standards 

(IFRSs), as applicable in Bangladesh, have been followed in preparation of the financial 
statements and any departure there-from has been adequately disclosed. 

 
(xv) The system of internal control is sound in design and has been effectively implemented and 

monitored. 
 

(xvi) There was no such situation raised to protect the interest of minority shareholders. 
 

(xvii) There are no significant doubts upon the company's ability to continue as a going concern.  
 
(xviii) Deviation from the last year’s operating results: 

 
During the year, turnover has drastically decreased. The decrease in turnover is mainly due 
to the global economic slowdown due to Covid-19. As a result, significant deviation has been 
created in operating result due to increase in wages and salaries & other fixed expenses.     

 
(xix) Key operating and financial data of at least preceding 5 (five) years: 

“Figure in thousand Taka” 
 

Particulars 2019-2020 2018-2019 2017-18 2016-17 
 

2015-16 
(15 Months) 

2014-15 

       
Operational Data:       

       Revenue          2,751,013  3,537,790 3,633,663  3,205,557   4,319,335       2,989,846  
Gross Profit     222,226  287,345  289,542   245,333  338,619          243,140  
Operating Profit       83,128  127,216 62,859   43,166    53,366            31,823  
Profit before Tax      30,701  55,690  62,411    47,270   56,012            35,921  
Net Profit after Tax      12,428  27,223  24,021    23,163    28,765            23,204  
Earnings Per Share (EPS)          1.48  3.24   2.86      2.76     3.42               2.76 
Dividend Per Share           1.50  2.00  2.00     2.00    2.20               2.00  

       
Financial Data:       

       Total Assets         1,280,118  1,387,062  1,465,206   1,325,340   1,461,496       1,374,272  
Property, Plant and Equipment-Gross  1,390,443  1,360,371  1,346,231   1,343,392   1,248,060       1,220,670  
Property, Plant and Equipment - Net      216,155  224,142  250,992   296,161    250,630          284,236  
Gross Working Capital     963,154  1,057,297  1,107,179  994,046   1,183,939       1,072,153  
Net Working Capital     195,694  147,557  110,775   115,834   160,401          120,061  
Working Capital Loan       24,261  38,524  57,911   16,178    83,790            81,131  
Share Capital        84,000    84,000    84,000   84,000    84,000            84,000  
Share Premium       15,000   15,000   15,000   15,000   15,000            15,000  
Reserve and Surplus      345,849    350,221   339,632  329,964  325,388          313,838  
Share Holders Equity      455,067   467,893  462,423  443,183  434,056          420,179  
Long Term Loan        81,116                   -                 -                  -                 -                  - 

 
(xx) Dividend: 

 
Board of Directors has recommended Cash Dividend of Tk. 1.50 per Share of Tk. 10.00 each 
for the year 2019-2020. Upon your approval in this Annual General Meeting, the dividend will 
be paid to the Shareholders whose names appear in the Share Registers of the Company or 
in the Depository as on 18th November 2020 at the close of office. 
 
 

(xxi) Interim Dividend: 
 
No Bonus share or stock dividend has been declared by Board of Directors for interim 
period. 
 
 
 
 



APEX SPINNING & KNITTING MILLS LIMITED                                 Annual Report 2019-2020 

27 

 
(xxii) Board meetings: 

  
During the year 6 (six) Board Meetings were held. The attendance record of the Directors is 
as follows: 

Name of Directors  Meeting attended  

Mr. Zafar Ahmed  6 

Mr. Zahur Ahmed PhD 6 

Mr. Shahriar Ahmed  6 

Mr. Md. Rafique Ullah  2 

Mr. Tarek Nizamuddin Ahmed (Retired) 3 

Mr. Kazi Faruq Kader  6 

 
(xxiii) The pattern of shareholding:  

 
Name wise details No. Shares 

 
a) Parent/subsidiary/Associated Companies and other related 

parties  

 

Apex Foods Limited 
 

2,263,200 
 Apex Lingerie Limited  

 
   143,000 

     Apex Yarn Dyeing Limited    136,400 

 
b) Directors, Chief Executive Officer, Company Secretary, Chief 

Financial Officer, Head of Internal Audit & Compliance:  

 

Mr. Zafar Ahmed – Director  842,400 

Mr. Zahur Ahmed PhD – Director  944,400 

Mr. Shahriar Ahmed – Director  47,400 

Mr. Md. Rafique Ullah - Director  NIL  

Mr. Kazi Faruq Kader – Independent Director NIL 

Mr. Kamruzzaman FCA – Chief Financial Officer   NIL 

Mr. Md. Golam Kibria FCMA –Head of Internal Audit & Compliance NIL 

Mr. Md. Delour Hossen – Acting Company Secretary  NIL 

c) Senior Corporate Executive  NIL 
 
 
 
 
   

d) Shareholders holding ten percent (10%) or more voting interest 
in the Company  

 

  
Mr. Zafar Ahmed 842,400 

Mr. Zahur Ahmed PhD 944,400 

Apex Foods Limited 2,263,200 

ICB Unit Fund    927,640 

 
(xxiv) Appointment/reappointment of directors of the Company:  
 

I, Zafar Ahmed, and Mr. Md. Rafique Ullah are retiring from the Board in terms of the 
Articles of Association of the Company and, being eligible, offer ourselves for re-election. 
The detailed work profiles of Mr. Md. Rafique Ullah and I are given below:   

 
Mr. Zafar Ahmed 
 

a) I am a Postgraduate of Dhaka University in Economics. I obtained training in Food & 
Drug Administration from the USA. I am one of the Sponsor Directors of the 
Company and is working in this sector since 1979. I am now acting as the Chairman 
of the Company. 

 
b) Since my joining in this sector, I have gathered vast knowledge in this sector and is 

one of the experts in the Frozen Foods sector of Bangladesh. 
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c) I am holding the Directorship of (i) Apex Spinning & Knitting Mills Limited, (ii) Apex 

Lingerie Limited, (iii) Apex Yarn Dyeing Limited, (iv) Apex Textile Printing Mills 
Limited (v) Matex Bangladesh Limited and (vi) Apex Fashion Wear Ltd. 

 
d) I am not a member of any committee of the Board. 

 
Mr. Md. Rafique Ullah     
 

Mr. Md. Rafique Ullah has joined the Board of Apex Spinning & Knitting Mills Limited on 
January 30, 2020, as Director nominated by the Investment Corporation of Bangladesh 
(ICB).  
 
a.    Mr. Rafique is a Post Graduate of Dhaka University. He has also achieved a Banking 

Diploma from IBB. After completing his education, he joined as Officer in ICB. He 
held various important positions during his long career with ICB, including his current 
position as Deputy General Manager. He has taken training from various institutes, 
especially from BIBM on Basel-ii implementation and from the Institute of Chartered 
Secretaries and Management (ICSM) of Bangladesh on Board management. 

 
b. He has sound knowledge in this sector. 

 
c.  He is also a director of S. Alam Cold Rolled Steels Ltd & BD. Thai Alluminium Ltd. 
 
d. Presently, Mr. Rafique is a member of the Audit Committee. 

 
(xxv) Management Discussion & Analysis Signed by MD:  

 
The management discussion and analysis signed by Managing Director representing 
details analysis of the company’s position and operation in attached in the annual report as 
Managing Director’s statement. 
 

(xxvi) Declaration signed by MD & CFO:  
Please refer to Annexure-A for declaration signed by MD and CFO. 
 

(xxvii) Corporate Governance Compliance Report:  
In accordance with the requirement of the Bangladesh Securities and Exchange 
Commission, “Corporate Governance Report” is annexed in Annexure B and C.  
 

(xxviii) Appointment of Statutory Auditors:  
 
The retiring Statutory Auditor M/s. Hussain Farhad & Co., Chartered Accountants, being 
eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment as Statutory Auditors of the Company for the 
year 2020-2021.  
 

(xxix) Appointment of Compliance Auditors:  
 
The retiring Compliance Auditor M/s. Malek Siddiqui Wali, Chartered Accountants being 
eligible offer themselves for re-appointment as a Compliance Auditors of the Company for 
Certification on Compliance of Corporate Governance Code for the year 2020-2021.  
 

(xxx)  Meeting of the Board of Directors:  
 

We have conducted our Board Meeting & recorded the minutes of the meeting as adopted 
by the Institute of Chartered Secretaries of Bangladesh (ICSB). 

 
 

Place: Dhaka                                                                      
Date: October 28, 2020 

On behalf of the Board 

 Sd/- 
Zafar Ahmed 

Chairman 
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cwiPvjKM‡Yi cÖwZ‡e`b 

wcÖq †kqvi‡nvìviMY,  
 

Avcbv‡`i †Kv¤úvbxi cwiPvjKMY 2020 mv‡ji 30 ‡k Ryb Zvwi‡L mgvß wnmve erm‡ii evwl©K cÖwZ‡e`b Gi mv‡_ 

wbix¶‡Ki cÖwZ‡e`b I wbixw¶Z Avw_©K weeiYx Avcbv‡`i m¤§y‡L Dc ’̄vcb Ki‡Z †c‡i Avbw›`Z|     
 

cwiPvjbv cl©‡`i cÖwZ‡e`b cÖbq‡bi †¶‡Î †Kv¤úvbx AvBb 1994 Gi 184 aviv Ges evsjv‡`k wmwKDwiwUR GÛ G·‡PÄ 

Kwgk‡bi (weGmBwm) †bvwUwd‡Kkb bs- weGmBwm/wmGgAviAviwmwW/2006-158/207/GWwgb/80 ZvwiL- Ryb 3, 2018 

Abymib Kiv n‡q‡Q| 
 

1. wkí m¤úwK©Z aviYv Ges GB wk‡íi fwel¨Z Dbœq‡bi m¤¢vebvt  
 

MZ `k erm‡ii g‡a¨ me‡P‡q Kg A_©‰bwZK cÖe„w×i nvi †`Lv hvq 2019-2020 A_© erm‡i | gnvgvixi Øviv 

ÿwZMª̄ ’ †`kxq Ges evwn‡ii Dfq Lv‡Zi Kv©hKjvc| ˆe‡`wkK Pvwn`vi g›`v fv‡ei cÖfve I we‡`kx †µZv‡`i AvMÖn 

mn mewKQz wbg&œ g~Lxi Kvi‡Y 2019-2020 A_© erm‡ii ‡kl c«vwšZ‡K ißvbx I Drcv`b e¨cKnv‡i n«vm cvq|   
 

‡KvwfW-19 Gi AvNvZ `ªæZ KvwU‡q DVvq  ˆe‡`wkK Pvwn`v µgvMZ e„w× cvIqv‡Z MZ RyjvB gv‡m A_©‰bwZK cÖe„w×i 

nvi wKQzUv e„w× cvq, hLb  †`kxq  evRv‡i Avw_©K fv‡e miKvix cÖ‡Yv`bv mnvqZv cÖ‡ek K‡i, mv‡_ mv‡_ mvg‡bi 

wµmgvm mg‡q Av‡iv †ewk  cÖe„w×i Avkv Kiv hvq | wØZxq ev‡ii gZ ‡KvwfW-19 Gi †XD‡qi Kvi‡Y we‡k¦i me †`k 

GB gnvgvix †iv‡a kw³kvjx c`‡ÿc MÖnb Ki‡Q | K‡ivbv fvBivm Gi cÖfve A‡bKw`b ¯’vwqZ¡  nIqvi  m¤¢vebv 

i‡q‡Q | Avgv‡`i fwel¨Z A_©bxwZi MwZ wb‡q mZK© _vKv `iKvi, hZÿY bv †fKwm‡bi Øviv ‡KvwfX-19 wbqb&ªb nq 

| 
 

2. LvZIqvwi A_ev cY¨ wfwËK djvdjt 
 

‡h‡nZz G‡c· w¯úwbs GÛ wbwUs wgjm& wjwg‡UW ïay gvÎ ˆZix †cvkvK Drcv`bKvix cÖwZôvb ‡m‡nZz GLv‡b cY¨ 

wfwËK djvd‡ji weeiY †`Iqvi †Kvb my‡hvM †bB| hv‡nvK evwl©K cÖwZ‡e`‡bi 29 bs †bv‡U cÖwZôvbwU †Kvb †`‡k 

KZ ißvbx K‡i‡Q Zvi we¯ÍvwiZ weeiY †`Iqv n‡q‡Q|  
 

3. SuywK I DwØMœZv mg~nt 
 

ˆZwi †cvkvK LvZ evsjv‡`‡ki Drcvw`Z Av‡qi cÖvq 80%, hvi Dci Kgc‡ÿ Pvi wgwjqb kÖwgK wbf©ikxj| 

 

we‡k¦i wØZxq e„nËg ˆZwi †cvkvK ißvbxKviK †`k evsjv‡`‡ki Dci K‡ivbv gnvgvix †Su‡K e‡m‡Q| hw`I `wÿY 

Gwkqvi †`k ¸‡jv‡Z K‡ivbv Avµv‡šÍi msL¨v Lye †ekx bv, ZeyI GB LvZ Ges GB Lv‡Zi kÖwgK‡`i RxweKvi Rb¨ 

GwU SzwKc~Y©| GB wk‡íi A‡bK ißvbx Av‡`k evwZj n‡”Q Ges A‡bK kÖwgK Kg©Pvix PvKzixPz¨Z n‡”Q| 

 

‡`‡ki Mv‡g©›Um LvZ cy‡ivcwyifv‡e ißvbx Av‡`‡ki Dci wbf©ikxj ,hv wek¦e¨cx K‡ivbvfvBiv‡mi cÖv`yf©v‡e 

gvivZ¥Kfv‡e  n«vm †c‡q‡Q|  evsjv‡`‡ki cÖvq 1.5 wewjqb Wjvi ißvbx Av‡`k evwZj n‡q‡Q, hvi Rb¨ 1.2 wgwjqb 

kÖwgK Kg©Pvix RxweKv nvwi‡q‡Q| we‡`kx †µZviv µgea©gvbfv‡e ißvbx Av‡`k wcwQ‡q w`‡”Q Ges  evwZj K‡i 

w`‡”Q| Av‡gwiKv Ges BD‡iv‡ci †`k¸‡jv evsjv‡`‡ki e„nËg Mv‡g©›Um ißvbx evRvi, Zv‡`i ‡gvU e¨env‡ii cÖvq 

60% †cvkvK ‡hvMvb †`q evsjv‡`k Ges eZ©gv‡b GB †`k¸‡jv KwfW-19 Gi wØZxq †XD †gvKv‡ejv Kivi cÖ ‘̄wZ 

wb‡”Q| GB cwiw ’̄wZ ¯v̂fvweK n‡Z Ges cybivq MwZ‡eM Avm‡Z mgq jvM‡e| 

 

4. wewµZ c‡Y¨i e¨q we‡kølY, †gvU cÖvwšÍK gybvdv Ges bxU cÖvwšÍK gybvdvt   
 

K) wewµZ c‡Y¨i e¨qt 

cÖwZ‡e`b Kvwjb mg‡q wewµZ c‡Y¨i e¨q wQj 2,529 wgwjqb UvKv, hv MZ ermi wQj 3,250 wgwjqb UvKv| 

Gi KviY cÖwZ‡e`b Kvwjb mg‡q †gvU weµq K‡g‡Q| cÖwZ‡e`b Kvwjb mg‡q 1,996,387 WRb ˆZwi †cvkvK 

Drcv`b n‡q‡Q hv MZ ermi wQj 2,533,522 WRb| MZ erm‡ii Zzjbvq 537,135 WRb Drcv`b n«vm 

†c‡q‡Q| cÖwZ‡e`b Kvwjb mg‡q †Kv¤úvbxi Drcv`b ¶gZvi 71.30 kZvsk e¨eüZ n‡q‡Q| MZ erm‡ii 

Zzjbvq cÖwZ‡e`b Kvwjb mg‡q gRyix Ges †eZb 21.48 wgwjqb UvKv e„w× †c‡q‡Q|  
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L) †gvU gybvdvt 

30 Ryb 2020 mgvß eQ‡i †Kv¤úvbx †gvU weµq K‡i‡Q 2,751.01 wgwjqb UvKv| MZ ermi weµq wQj 

3,537.79 wgwjqb UvKv| MZ erm‡ii Zyjbvq G eQi 22.24 kZvsk weµq nªvm ‡c‡q‡Q| G eQi †gvU gybvdv 

AwR©Z n‡q‡Q 222.23 wgwjqb UvKv, hv MZ ermi wQj 287.34 wgwjqb UvKv| 
 

M) bxU gybvdvt 

cÖwZ‡e`b Kvwjb mg‡q bxU gybvdv (Ki cieZx©) n‡q‡Q 12.43 wgwjqb UvKv, hv MZ ermi wQj 27.22 wgwjqb 

UvKv| MZ eQ‡ii bxU gybvdvi mwnZ G eQ‡ii bxU gybvdvi D‡jøL‡hvM¨ cv_©‡K¨i KviY nj †KvwfW-19 |  

 

5. A¯̂vfvweK jvf ev ¶wZt 
 

G eQi ev Í̄weK A‡_© cÖvß †Kvb A¯̂vfvweK jvf ev ¶wZ ‡bB| Z‡e 8.45 wgwjqb UvKv wewb‡qv‡Mi myô g~j¨vq‡Yi 

d‡j NvUwZ n‡q‡Q hvnv mgwb¦Z Avq weeiYx‡Z †`Lv‡bv n‡q‡Q hvnv G‡c· dzWm& wjwg‡UW Gi †kqv‡i wewb‡qv‡Mi 

mgvcbx evRvi g~j¨ Ges MZ erm‡ii Avw_©K Ae¯’vi weeiYx‡Z †`Lv‡bv g~‡j¨i cv_©K¨, GUv AvšÍ©RvwZK G¨vKvDw›Us 

÷¨vÛ©vm& (AvB.G.Gm) / AvšÍ©RvwZK dvBb¨vbwmqvj wi‡cvwU©s ÷¨vÛ©vm& (AvB .Gd.Avi.Gm) Abyhvqx wnmve weeiYx‡Z 

†`Lv‡bv n‡q‡Q| evwl©K cªwZ‡e`†b 21bs †bv‡U we¯ÍvwiZ weeiY †`Iqv n‡q‡Q| 
 

6. AvšÍt m¤úwK©Z †Kv¤úvbxi †jb‡`b mg~nt  
 

GKB cwiPvj‡Ki Aax‡b G‡c· w¯úwbs GÛ wbwUs wgjm& wjwg‡U‡Wi mv‡_ G‡c· BqvY© WvBs wjwg‡UW Ges g¨v‡U· 

evsjv‡`k wjwg‡UW-Gi wKQz †jb‡`b Av‡Q | hv AvB.G.Gm 24 Abymv‡i GB †jb‡`b ¸‡jvB AvšÍt m¤úwK©Z 

†Kv¤úvbx †jb‡`b | e¨emv‡qi ¯v̂fvweK wbqg bxwZ Abymib K‡i ‡jb‡`b m¤úbœ n‡q‡Q hvnv wba©vwiZ n‡q‡Q Avg©Õm 

†jš’’ cÖvB‡m| we¯ÍvwiZ wb‡P D‡jøL Kiv nj:  
 

 

cvwU©i bvg cÖviw¤¢K e¨v‡jÝ GB ermi µq GB ermi 

cwi‡kva 

mgvcbx 

e¨‡jÝ 

K) g¨v‡U· evsjv‡`k wjwg‡UW - 119,843,442 119,843,442 - 

L) G‡c· Bqvb© WvBs wjwg‡UW - 21,963,627 21,963,627 - 

 

 

7. cvewjK Bmy¨ A_ev ivBU Bmy¨ nB‡Z cÖvß Znwe‡ji e¨envit  
 

G ermi †Kvb cvewjK Bmy¨ A_ev ivBU Bmy¨ Kiv nq bvB|  
 

8. Bwbwkqvj cvewjK Advwis (AvB.wc.I), wiwcU cvewjK Advwis (Avi. wc. I), ivBU Advi, WvB‡i± wjw÷s BZ¨vw` 

†_‡K A_© ev Znwej cÖvwßi ci †Kv¤úvbxi Avw_©K Ae¯’v t 

 

 1994 mv‡ji †deªæqvix gv‡mi 10 Zvwi‡L Bwbwkqvj cvewjK Advwis (AvB.wc.I) nq Gi ci †_‡K †Kv¤úvbx 

avivevwnK fv‡e fv‡jv K‡i hv‡”Q|  
 

9. evwl©K Avw_©K weeiYx Ges ‰ÎgvwmK Avw_©K Ae¯’vi weeiYxi g‡a¨ cv_©K¨t 
 

†kqvi cÖwZ Avq D‡jøL‡hvM¨ fv‡e nªvm †c‡q‡Q (A_©vr Z…Zxq c«vwšZK ch©šÍ cwiPvjb Kvh©µ‡g †kqvi cÖwZ Avq wQj 

1.99 UvKv wKš‘ evrmwiK Bnv n‡q‡Q 1.48 UvKv) GUv gzjZ ‰ewk¦K †KvwfW-19 Kvi‡Y 2019-20 A_© eQ‡ii ‡kl 

ˆÎgvwmK weµq nªvm cvq| 
 

10. ¯Ẑš¿ cwiPvjK mn cwiPvjK‡`i cvwik«wgKt 
 

¯Ẑš¿ cwiPvjK mn cwiPvjK‡`i cvwikªwgK wbgœiƒct 

 cwiPvjK‡`i  bvg cwiPvjK/¯̂Zš¿ cwiPvjK evrmwiK cvwikªwgK 

Rbve Rûi Avn‡g` wcGBPwW cwiPvjK 1,770,000/- 

Rbve kvnwiqvi Avn‡g` cwiPvjK 1,180,000/- 

Rbve KvRx dviæK Kv‡`i  ¯Ẑš¿ cwiPvjK 590,000/- 

 

 

11. †Kv¤úvbxi e¨e¯’vcbv KZ…©c¶ KZ…©K cÖ ‘̄ZK…Z Avw_©K weeiYx‡Z †Kv¤úvbxi Avw_©K Ae¯’v, Kvh©µ‡gi djvdj, bM` 

cÖevn, g~ja‡bi cwieZ©b mwVK fv‡e Dc¯’vcb Kiv n‡q‡Q| 

 

12. †Kv¤úvbxi wnmve ewn mg~n h_vh_ fv‡e msi¶Y Kiv n‡q‡Q| 
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13. Avw_©K weeiYx cÖ ‘̄wZ‡Z h‡_vchy³ wnmvebxwZ mg~n avivevwnK fv‡e cÖ‡qvM Kiv n‡q‡Q Ges wnmveMZ cwigvcK mg~n 

hyw³hy³ I weP¶Y wm×v‡šÍi Dci cÖwZwôZ| 

 

14. B›Uvib¨vkbvj G¨vKvDw›Us ÷¨vÛv©m (AvB.G.Gm), B›Uvib¨vkbvj wdb¨vbwmqvj wi‡cvwU©s ÷¨vÛv©m (AvB.Gd.Avi.Gm)/ 

evsjv‡`k wdb¨vbwmqvj wi‡cvwU©s ÷¨vÛv©m (we.Gd.Avi.Gm) hvnv evsjv‡`‡k cÖ‡hvR¨ Zvnv Abymib K‡i Avw_©K 

weeiYx cÖ ‘̄Z Kiv n‡q‡Q Ges †Kv_vI †Kvb e¨Z¨q _vK‡j Zvnv h_vh_ fv‡e cÖKvk Kiv n‡q‡Q| 
 

15. Af¨šÍixb wbqš¿Y e¨e¯’v mymsnZ I Kvh©Ki fv‡e ev Í̄evqb I ch©‡e¶Y Kiv n‡q‡Q|  

 

16. msL¨vjNy †kqvi‡nvìvi‡`i ¯^v_© iÿvi Rb¨ G ai‡bi †Kvb cwiw¯’wZ DÌvwcZ nqwb| 
 

17. †Kv¤úvbxi Pjgvb Aw Í̄‡Z¡i mvg†_©¨i ‡¶‡Î †Kvbiƒc Zvrch©c~Y© m‡›`‡ni AeKvk bvB| 

 

18. MZ erm‡ii cwiPvjbMZ djvd‡ji mwnZ PjwZ erm‡ii e¨eavbt 

 

PjwZ eQi weµq e¨vcKnv‡i K‡g‡Q | GUv g~jZ †KvwfW-19 Kvi‡Y ‰ewk¦K A_©bxwZi wb¤œMwZ|  djm¦iƒc  gRyix I 

†eZb e„w× I Ab¨vb¨ m¦vqx LiP e„w×i d‡j cwiPvjbMZ djvd‡j D‡jøL†hvM¨  e¨eavb cwijw¶Z n‡q‡Q | 

 

19. c~e©eZ©x cuvP eQ‡ii g~L¨ cwiPvjb Ges Avw_©K DcvËt 

                      ÒmsL¨v nvRvi UvKvqÓ 

weeib  

 

 

 

 

 

 

2019-20 2018-19 2017-18 

 

 

 

2016-17 

 

2015-16 

(15 gvm) 

 

2014-15 

cwiPvjb Z_¨:       

       
weµq 2,751,013 3,537,790 3,633,663 3,205,557 4,319,335 2,989,846 

‡gvU gybvdv 222,226 287,345 289,542 245,333 338,619 243,140 

cvwiPvjb gybvdv 83,128 127,216 62,859 43,166 53,336 31,823 

Kic~e© gybvdv 30,701 55,690 62,411 47,270 56,012 35,921 

KicieZ©x gybvdv 12,428 27,223 24,021 23,163 28,765 23,204 

‡kqvi cÖwZ Avq 1.48 3.24 2.86 2.76 3.42 2.76 

c«wZ ‡kqv‡ii Rb¨ jf¨vsk 1.50 2.00 2.00 2.00 2.20 2.00 

Avw_©K Z_¨:       

       
‡gvU  m®c` 1,280,118 1,387,062 1,465,206 1,325,340 1,461,496

 

141161 

1,374,272 

mgúwË, hšÎúvwZ I hšÎvsk-‡gvU 1,390,443 1,360,371 1,346,231 1,343,392 1,248,060 1,220,670 

mgúwË, hšÎúvwZ I hšÎvsk-bxU 216,155 224,142 250,992 296,161 250,630 284,236 

‡gvU PjwZ g~jab 963,154 1,057,297 1,107,179 994,046 1,183,939 1,072,153 

bxU PjwZ g~jab 195,694 147,557 110,775 115,834 160,401 120,061 

PjwZ g~jab FY 24,261 38,524 57,911 16,178 83,790 81,131 

‡kqvi g~jab   84,000    84,000  84,000 84,000 84,000 84,000 

‡kqvi wc«wgqvg  15,000   15,000  15,000 15,000 15,000 15,000 

msi¶b Ges DØ…Ë   345,849   350,221 339,632 329,964 325,388 313,838 

‡kqvi gvwjK‡`i BKyBwU  455,067  467,893 462423 443,183 434,056 420,179 

`xN© †gqvw` FY  81,116          -         -                -                 -             - 

 
      

 

20. jf¨vsk: 
 

†Kv¤úvbxi cwiPvjKgÛjx 2019-20 wnmve eQ‡i 10/- (`k) UvKvi †kqv‡ii Rb¨ 1.50 UvKv nv‡i bM` jf¨vsk 

cÖ`v‡bi mycvwik Ki‡Qb| GB evwl©K mvaviY mfvq Avcbv‡`i Aby†gv`b mv‡c‡¶ ‡mB mg Í̄ †kqvi†nvìvi‡`i jf¨vsk 

cÖ`vb Kiv n‡e hv‡`i bvg †Kv¤úvbxi m`m¨ ewn†Z A_ev wW‡cvwRUwi‡Z b‡f¤̂i 18, 2020 Bs Zvwi‡L Kvh© mgvß 

mg‡q AšÍf©~³ _vK‡e| 
 

 

21. AšÍe©ZxKvjxb jf¨vsk: 

 

cwiPvjbv cl©̀  AšÍe©Z©xKvjxb mg‡q †Kvb †evbvm †kqvi ev ÷K jf¨vsk †Nvlbv K‡iwb| 
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22. ‡ev‡W©i mfv: 

 

G ermi ‡ev‡W©i 6 (Qq) wU mfv AbywôZ n‡q‡Q| cwiPvjKM‡Yi Dcw¯’wZi ZvwjKv wb‡gœ cÖ`Ë nj: 

 

cwiPvjKe„‡›`i bvg mfvq Dcw¯’wZ 

Rbve Rvdi Avn‡g` 6 

Rbve Rûi Avn‡g` wcGBPwW 6 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Rbve kvnwiqvi Avn‡g` 6 

Rbve ‡gv: iwdK Djøvn 2 

Rbve Zv‡iK wbRvgDwÏb Avn‡g` 3 

Rbve KvRx dviæK Kv‡`i  6 

23. †kqvi‡nvwìsm msKªvšÍ weeiY: 

bvg Abymv‡i weeiY ‡kqvi msL¨v 

 

K) c¨v‡i›U/ mvewmwWqvix/ G‡mvwm‡q†UW †Kv¤úvbx Ges Ab¨vb¨ m¤úwK©Z cvwU©mgyn: 

     G‡c· dzWm& wjwg‡UW 2,263,200 

     G‡c· j¨vbRvix wjwg‡UW 143,000 

     G‡c· Bqvb© WvBs wjwg‡UW  136,400 

 

L)  cwiPvjKe„›`, cÖavb wbe©vnx Kg©KZ©v, †Kv¤úvbx mwPe, cÖavb A_© Kg©KZ©v, Af¨šÍixY wbix¶v I Kgcøv‡qÝ cÖavb: 

     Rbve Rvdi Avn‡g` cwiPvjK   842,400 

     Rbve Rûi Avn‡g` wcGBPwW cwiPvjK   944,400 

     Rbve kvnwiqvi Avn‡g` cwiPvjK      47,400 

     Rbve ‡gv: iwdK Djøvn cwiPvjK            - 

     Rbve KvRx dviæK Kv‡`i  ¯̂Zš¿ cwiPvjK           - 

     Rbve Kvgiæ¾vgvb GdwmG cÖavb A_© Kg©KZ©v           - 

     Rbve †gv: ‡Mvjvg wKewiqv GdwmGgG Af¨šÍixb wbix¶v I Kgcøv‡qÝ cÖavb           - 

     Rbve ‡gv: ‡`‡jvqvi †nv‡mb fvicÖvß †Kv¤úvbx mwPe            - 

 

M) Da¦©Zb Ki‡cv‡iU wbe©vnxMY 

 

    - 

N) †Kv¤úvbx†Z 10 kZvsk A_ev Zvi †P‡q †ekx †fv‡Ui AwaKvix †kqvi‡nvìvi: 

 

      Rbve Rvdi Avn‡g` 842,400 

      Rbve Rûi Avn‡g` wcGBPwW   944,400 

      G‡c· dyWm wjwg‡UW  2,263,200 

      AvBwmwe BDwbU dvÛ 927,640 

24. †Kv¤úvbxi cwiPvjKe„‡›`i wb‡qvM/cybt wb‡qvMt  
 

Avwg Rvdi Avn‡g` Ges Rbve ‡gv: iwdK Djøvn †Kv¤úvbxi msNwewa †gvZv‡eK ‡evW© †_‡K c`Z¨vM K‡iwQ Ges 

†hvM¨ weavq cybtwbe©vP‡bi Rb¨ B”Qv cÖKvk K‡iwQ| | Avgvi Ges Rbve ‡gv: iwdK Djøvn Gi we¯ÍvwiZ weeiY 

wbgœiƒct- 

 

(1) Rvdi Avn‡g`t 
 

K) Avwg Rvdi Avn‡g` XvKv wek¦we`¨vjq †_‡K A_©bxwZ‡Z mœv‡ZvKËi wWMÖx wb‡qwQ| Avwg hy³iv‡óªi dzW GÛ WªvM 

GWwgwb‡óªkb †_‡K †Uªwbs wb‡qwQ| Avwg GB wkí Lv‡Z 1979 mb †_‡K KvR K‡i Avwm‡ZwQ Ges GB †Kv¤úvbxi 

GKRb D‡`¨v³v cwiPvjK | Avwg eZ©gv‡b GB †Kv¤úvbxi †Pqvig¨vb| 



APEX SPINNING & KNITTING MILLS LIMITED                                 Annual Report 2019-2020 

33 

 

 

L) GB wk‡í †hvM`vb Kiv †_‡K G ch©šÍ G wkí m¤ú‡K© Mfxi Ávb AR©b K‡iwQ  

 

M) Avwg GB †Kv¤úvbx QvovI 1. G‡c· dzWm& wjwg‡UW, 2. G‡c· j¨vbRvwi wjwg‡UW, 3. G‡c· Bqvb© WvBs wjwg‡UW, 

4. G‡c· †U·UvBj wcªw›Us wgjm& wjwg‡UW  5. g¨v‡U· evsjv‡`k wjwg‡UW I 6. G‡c· d¨vkb Iq¨vi wjwg‡UW -Gi 

cwiPvjK c‡` wbhy³ AvwQ|  
 

N) eZ©gv‡b Avwg ‡ev‡W©i Ab¨ †Kvb KwgwUi m`m¨ bB|   
 

2) Rbve ‡gv: iwdK Djøvn:  

 Rbve ‡gv: iwdK Djøvn Bb‡fó‡g›U K‡c©v‡ikb Ae evsjv‡`k (AvBwmwe) Gi g‡bvbxZ cwiPvjK | Rbve ‡gv: iwdK 

Djøvn Gi we¯ÍvwiZ weeiY wbgœiæct 
 

K) Rbve ‡gv: iwdK Djøvn Rvbyqvix 30, 2020 mv‡j Bb‡fó‡g›U K‡c©v‡ikb Ae evsjv‡`k (AvBwmwe) Gi g‡bvbxZ 

cwiPvjK wnmv‡e G‡c· w¯úwbs GÛ bxwUs wgjm& wjwg‡UW Gi cwiPvjK cl©‡` †hvM`vb K‡ib| wZwb XvKv 

wek¦we`¨vjq nB‡Z mœv‡ZvKËi wWwMÖ AR©b K‡ib| wZwb AvBwewe nB‡Z e¨vswKs wW‡cøvgvIÖ AR©b K‡ib| cov‡kvbv 

†k‡l wZwb AvBwmwe†Z Awdmvi c‡` †hvM`vb K‡ib, wZwb `xN©w`b a‡i wewfbœ ¸iæZ¡c~Y© c‡` AwawôZ ‡_‡K eZ©gv‡b 

wZwb †WcywU †Rbv‡ij g¨v‡bRvi c‡` Av‡Qb |  wZwb wewfbœ cÖwZôvb †_‡K †Uªwbs †bb Zv‡`i g‡a¨ we AvB we Gg 

†_‡K †e‡mj ii Gi Dci  cÖ‡qvM Ges AvB wm Gm Gg. †_‡K ‡evW© e¨e¯’vcbvi Dci |   

 

L) wZwb GB wkí LvZ m¤ú‡K© Mfxi Áv‡bi AwaKvix| 
 

M) wZwb GB †Kv¤úvbx QvovI Gm Avjg †Kvì †iv‡jW w÷j wj: Ges wewW _vB G‡jvwgwbqvg wjwg‡UW Gi cwiPvjK c‡` 

wbhy³ Av‡Qb| 
 

N) eZ©gv‡b wZwb AwWU KwgwUi GKRb m`m¨| 
 

25. g¨v‡bR‡g›U Av‡jvPbv Ges we‡kølY hvnv e¨e¯’vcbv cwiPvjK KZ…©K ¯v̂ÿwiZ: 

 

e¨e¯’vcbv cwiPvjK KZ…©K ¯v̂ÿwiZ g¨v‡bR‡g›U Av‡jvPbv I we‡kølY hv e¨e¯’vcbv cwiPvj‡Ki wee„wZ wnmv‡e evwl©K 

cÖwZ‡e`‡b mshy³ ‡Kv¤úvbxi Ae¯’vb, Acv‡ikb Ges wek` we‡køl‡Yi cÖwZwbwaZ¡ K‡i | 

 

26. GgwW Ges wmGdI KZ…©K ¯v̂ÿwiZ wee„wZ: 

GgwW Ges wmGdI KZ…©K ¯v̂ÿwiZ wee„wZ AbyMÖnc~e©K cwiwkó G co–b| 
 

27. K‡c©v‡iU Mf‡b©Ý Kgcøv‡qÝ cÖwZ‡e`bt  

evsjv‡`k wmwKDwiwUR GÛ G·‡PÄ Kwgk‡bi Pvwn`v Abyhvqx K‡c©v‡iU Mf‡b©Ý cÖwZ‡e`b cwiwkó we I wm mshy³ 

Kiv n‡jv| 
 

28. wewae× wbix¶Kt 
 

Aemi MÖnbKvix wewae× wbix¶K †gmvm© ûmvBb dinv` GÛ †Kv¤úvbx, PvU©vW© G¨vKvD›U¨v›Um ‡hvM¨ weavq 2020-

2021 wnmve erm‡ii Rb¨ Zvnv‡`i‡K wewae× wbix¶K cybt wb‡qv‡Mi Rb¨ cÖ Í̄ve K‡i‡Qb| 

 

29. Kgcøv‡qÝ wbix¶Kt 

Aemi MÖnbKvix Kgcøv‡qÝ wbix¶K †gmvm© gv‡jK wmwÏKx Iqvjx, PvU©vW© G¨vKvD›U¨v›Um& ‡hvM¨ weavq 2020-2021 

wnmve erm‡ii K‡c©v‡iU Mf‡b©Ý Kgcøv‡qÝ mb` cÖ`v‡bi Rb¨ Kgcøv‡qÝ wbix¶K wnmv‡e, Zvnv‡`i‡K cybt wb‡qv‡Mi 

Rb¨ cÖ Í̄ve K‡i‡Qb| 
 

30. ‡evW© cwiPvjK‡`i mfv t 

cwiPvjK‡`i ‡evW© mfv Ges Bnvi bw_ mg~‡ni msi¶Y BbwówUDU Ae PvU©vW© †m‡µUvixm Ae evsjv‡`k 

(AvBwmGmwe) Abymv‡i Kiv n‡q‡Q | 

 

 

  

’̄vb : XvKv †ev‡W©i c‡¶ 

ZvwiL: 28 A‡±vei, 2020 ¯v̂/- 

 Rvdi Avn‡g` 

 mfvcwZ 
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VALUE ADDED STATEMENT 

  Value in Taka  

     

PARTICULARS  2019-2020 % 2018-2019 % 

        
VALUE ADDED:       

Revenue       2,751,013,453     3,537,789,856  

Less: Bought in Materials & Services    1,400,877,350     2,153,370,505  
    ------------------    -----------------------  

    1,350,136,103  1,384,419,351  

    ===========  ==========  

APPLICATIONS:       

Government as Tax    21,620,885 1.60 23,305,098 1.68 

Employees as Salary, Wages & Allowances 1,237,057,248 91.62 1,215,803,987 87.82 

Providers of Loan as Interest  58,405,412 4.33 76,909,098 5.56 

Providers of Capital as Dividend 16,800,000 1.24 16,800,000 1.21 

Depreciation & Retention  16,252,558 1.20 51,601,168 3.73 

    ------------------ -------- ------------------- -------- 

    1,350,136,103    100.00  1,384,419,351 100.00 

    =========== ===== ========== ===== 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
To the shareholders of 

APEX SPINNING & KNITTING MILLS LIMITED 
 
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 
Opinion 
We have audited the financial statements of Apex Spinning & Knitting Mills Limited 
(hereinafter “ASKML”), which comprise the statement of financial position as at June 30, 2020, 
and the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, statement of changes in 
equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial 
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies. 
In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial 
position of ASKML as at June 30, 2020, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for 
the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs). 
 
Basis for Opinion 
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our 
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities 
for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the 
Company in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code 
of Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA Code) together with the ethical requirements 
that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in Bangladesh, and we have fulfilled 
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the IESBA Code. 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our opinion. 
 
Emphasis of Matter 

 
a) We draw attention to note no. 39 wherein the basis for restatement has been described in 

respect of opening balance as on July 01, 2018 for the forfeited amount of the employer’s 

contribution to the provident fund in its annual financial statements; and 

b) As disclosed in note 3.04 to the financial statements where it has been described the 

reason for not implementing IFRS 16 in the financial statements.  

Our Opinion is not modified in respect of the matters emphasized. 
 
Key Audit Matters 
 
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most 
significance in our audit of the financial statements of the current year. These matters were 
addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming 
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.  
 
 

Key Audit Matter How our audit addressed the key audit matters 

Revenue recognition 

At the year ended, the company’s 
reported total revenue of Tk. 
2,751,013,453. 
 
Revenue is recognized when the 
amounts and the related costs are 
reliably measured, and the 
performance obligation is complete 
through passing of control to the 
customers. Revenue from the sale of 

We have tested the design and operating 
effectiveness of key controls focusing on the 
following:  

 Agreements with the buyers; 

 Policy of revenue recognition;  

 Issuance of VAT challan;  

 Related LC documents; 

 Segregation of duties in invoice creation and 
modification; and  

 Timing of revenue recognition.  
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Key Audit Matter How our audit addressed the key audit matters 

goods is recognized at the time when 
the goods are dispatched for delivery 
to the terminal.  
 
We identified revenue recognition as a 
key audit matter because revenue has 
wide influence on financial statements 
of ASKML and therefore there is an 
inherent risk of manipulation of the 
timing of recognition of revenue by 
management to meet specific targets 
or expectations.  

 

 
 
 
 
Our substantive procedures in relation to the revenue 
recognition comprises the following:  

 We understood, evaluated and validated the 
key controls related to the ASKML’s sales 
process from end to end, from contracts 
approval and sign-off, recording of sales, 
goods dispatched, all the way through to cash 
receipts and customers’ outstanding 
balances; 

 We tested the completeness of journal entries 
compared to financial statements; as well as 
if there any exception existed that the debit 
accounts of sales recognition were not 
related to cash and bank, trade receivables or 
advances from customers; 

 We conducted substantive testing of revenue 
recorded over the year using sampling 
techniques, by examining the relevant 
supporting documents including sales 
invoices, outbound delivery note and truck 
challans. We also confirmed customer 
balances at the statement of financial position 
date; 

 Obtaining supporting documentation for sales 
transactions recorded either side of year end 
as well as credit notes issued after the year 
end date to determine whether revenue was 
recognized in the correct period; and 

 Finally assessed the appropriateness and 
presentation of disclosures against relevant 
accounting Standards.  

 
 
 
 
 
 

See note 29 to the financial statements 

Valuation and existence of inventories 

At year end, ASKML has inventories 
amounting to BDT 332,107,738 
which amounted to 26% of the total 
assets.  As per IAS 2, inventories 
are required to be valued at the 
lower to cost and net realizable 
value. Cost of inventories includes 
purchase cost and cost incurred in 
bringing inventories to its present 
location and condition. IAS 2 
specifically prohibits certain costs 
from being excluded from the cost 

With regard to appropriate valuation of inventories 
we adopted the following audit procedures: 

 We observed ASKML’s year-end inventory 
count, performed test counts and reconciled 
count sheet records to inventory valuation 
report in order to verify the existence of 
inventories reported in the accounts; 

 We tested the purchase costs of a sample of 
inventory items by inspecting invoices; 

 We assessed the components of the costs 
included within inventory items to ensure that 
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Key Audit Matter How our audit addressed the key audit matters 

of inventories. ASKML values its 
inventories using the weighted 
average method which is a complex 
process and prone to errors and 
manipulation.  Due to the complex 
nature of accounting for inventories, 
there is an increased risk of 
misstatement in valuation of 
inventory items. 
IAS 2 defines inventories as assets 
which are: (a) held for sale in the 
ordinary course of business, (b) in 
the process of production for such 
sale, (c) in the form of materials or 
supplies to be consumed in the 
production process or rendering of 
services. There was therefore a risk 
that assets which do not meet the 
definition of inventories have been 
improperly classified as inventory 
items. 
 

 
 

they are in conformity with the requirements 
of IAS 2; 

 We assessed the movement of inventories 
and analyzed whether closing inventories 
were valued using the weighted average 
method; 

 We tested on a sample basis, the net 
realizable value by comparing costs to recent 
selling prices; 

 We assessed the listing of the nature of 
items presented within inventories and 
analyzed whether they meet the definition of 
inventories; and 

 We read the disclosure made by the 
Company for compliance with disclosure 
requirements. 

See note 12 to the financial statements 

Property, Plant and Equipment 

The carrying value of property, plant 
and equipment amounts to BDT 
216,154,958. This represents a 
significant amount in the company’s 
statement of financial position as at 
June 30, 2020. 

There is a risk of: 
 determining which costs meet 

the criteria for capitalization; 
 determining the date on 

which the assets is 
recognized to property, plant 
and equipment and 
depreciation commences; 

 the estimation of economic 
useful lives and residual 
values assigned to Fixed 
asset. 

We identified the carrying value of 
property, plant and equipment as a 
key audit matter because of the high 
level of management judgment 
involved and because of its 
significance to the financial 
statements. 
 

Our audit procedures to assess the carrying value of 
property, plant and equipment included the 
following: 

Our audit procedures included controls testing and 
substantive procedures covering, in particular: 

 Assessing the design, implementation and 
operating effectiveness of key internal controls 
over the completeness, existence and accuracy 
of property, plant and equipment including the 
key internal controls over the estimation of 
useful economic lives and residual values; 

 Assessing, on a sample basis, costs capitalized 
during the year by comparing the costs 
capitalized with the relevant underlying 
documentation, which included purchase 
agreements and invoices, and assessing 
whether the costs capitalized met the relevant 
criteria for capitalization; 

 Testing the key controls over the management’s 
judgment in relation to the accounting estimates 
of the depreciable lives and residual values of 
property, plant and equipment; 

 Reconcile on a sample basis the additional 
capitalized costs for the year to the underlying 
invoices and supporting documents; 

 We reviewed minutes of board meetings for 
approval of the total capitalization cost; 

 We assessed the company’s capitalizations 
policy for compliance with IAS 16 and tested 
the expenditure capitalized against the 
capitalizations policy; 
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Key Audit Matter How our audit addressed the key audit matters 

 We traced payments to supporting documents; 
and 

 We assessed the adequacy of the disclosures of 
the financial statements. 

 

 

See note no 8 to the financial statements. 

Deferred tax liability 

Company reported net deferred tax 

liability BDT 3,513,997 as at June 30, 

2020. Significant judgment is 

required in relation to deferred tax 

liability as their liability is dependent 

on forecasts of future profitability 

over a number of years.   

Our audit procedures to assess the carrying value of 

Deferred Tax liability included the following: 

 We obtained an understanding, evaluated the 

design and tested the operational effectiveness 

of the Company’s key controls over the 

recognition and measurement of deferred tax 

assets and deferred tax Liabilities and the 

assumptions used in estimating the future 

taxable expense of the Company. 

 We also assessed the completeness and 

accuracy of the data used for the estimations of 

future taxable expense. 

 We tested the mathematical accuracy in 

calculation of deferred tax. 

 We evaluated the reasonableness of key 

assumptions, timing of reversal of temporary 

differences and expiration of tax loss carry 

forwards, recognition and measurement of 

deferred tax liability. 

 We assessed the adequacy of the Company’s 

disclosures setting out the basis of deferred tax 

liability balances and the level of estimation 

involved. 

 We also assisted in evaluating the tax 

implications, the reasonableness of estimations 

and calculations determined by management. 

 We also involved our internal experts from the 

tax area in the analysis of the reasonableness 

of the tax assumptions on the basis of the 

applicable legislation. 

 
 
Finally assessed the appropriateness and 
presentation of disclosures against IAS 12 Income 
Taxes. 

See note no 23 to the financial statements. 
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Key Audit Matter How our audit addressed the key audit matters 

COVID-19 impact on Financial Statements 

COVID 19 is a force majeure event, 

unique in nature has devastated the 

world and mankind. Efforts are 

underway to contain and recover. 

 
The Challenges ahead are huge, that 

would be addressed both by 

invention and discoveries and also 

with cognizance to the nature and 

nurture. Last but not the least, there 

is always light at the other end of a 

tunnel. 

Auditor’s and the firms under force majeure event 

applied best judgments under the force majeure 

compulsion and the circumstances     in developing 

alternative audit procedures to gather sufficient 

explanations as practicable.  

 
Regulatory initiatives and stimulus packages are 

under constant evaluations of the Government to 

sustain companies operations. On collective 

success assurance upon COVID, ASKML is 

committed to visualize that authority always flows 

from top to bottom, responsibility flows from bottom 

to top and communicating across ASKML that, 

accountability cannot be delegated and escaped. 

 
Auditor’s extended professional skepticism and 

judgment-based assurances under the 

circumstances and relatively practicable support in 

the interest of Country’s export oriented companies 

business to a broader perspective. 

 
Other Matter  
The financial statements of the Company for the year ended June 30, 2019, were audited by 
another auditor Malek Siddiqui Wali, Chartered Accountants, who expressed an unmodified 
opinion on those statements on October 20, 2019. 
 
Other Information 

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the 
information in the Annual Report other than the financial statements and our auditor’s report 
thereon. The Annual Report is expected to be made available to us after the date of this 
auditor’s report. 

 

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not 
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

 

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether 
the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge 
obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. 

 

After going through the Annual Report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement 
therein, we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance. 

 

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial 
Statements and Internal Controls 
 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial 

statements in accordance with IFRSs, the Companies Act, 1994, the Securities and 

Exchange Rules, 1987 and other applicable laws and regulations and for such internal control 

as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements 

that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
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In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing ASKML’s 

ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going 

concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends 

to liquidate ASKML or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

 

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing ASKML’s financial reporting 

process. 

 
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 
 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as 

a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an 

auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, 

but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a 

material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are 

considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to 

influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. 

 

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 

professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

 

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to 
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from 
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, 
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 
 

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of ASKML’s internal control. 
 

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management. 
 

 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of 
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty 
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on ASKML’s 
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, 
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in 
the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. 
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our 
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause ASKML to cease to 
continue as a going concern. 

 

 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, 
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the 
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 

planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant 

deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. 
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We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with 

relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all 

relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our 

independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 

 

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those 

matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current 

period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’ 

report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in 

extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in 

our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to 

outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication. 

 

Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 
 

In accordance with the Companies Act, 1994 and the Securities and Exchange Rules, 1987, 
we also report the following:  
 

a) we have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our 
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit and made due 
verification thereof;  
 

b) in our opinion, proper books of accounts as required by law have been kept by the 
Company so far as it appeared from our examination of these books;  
 

c) the statement of financial position and the statement of profit or loss and other 
comprehensive income dealt with by the report are in agreement with the books of 
accounts and returns; and 
 

     d) the expenditure incurred was for the purposes of the ASKML's business. 
 
 
                                                                                                      Sd/- 
Place: Dhaka                                                          A. K. M. Fazlul Haque FCA 
Date: October 28, 2020                                     Engagement Partner 
                                                                Hussain Farhad & Co. 
                                                               Chartered Accountants 
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              STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION   

         AS AT JUNE 30, 2020   
    Value in Taka  

   Notes  30.06.2020   30.06.2019**      01.07.2018 
        
ASSETS         

        Non Current Assets:        316,964,077       329,765,118  
 

 358,026,876 

Property, Plant and Equipment 8     216,154,958       224,142,218   250,991,726 

Investment 9       21,896,375         31,289,750   36,976,550 

Investment in Financial Assets 10       68,854,594         64,275,000   60,000,000 

Security Deposits 11        10,058,150         10,058,150   10,058,600 

        
Current Assets:      963,154,089   1,057,296,625  1,107,179,033 

Inventories 12      332,107,738       195,772,567   196,249,430 

Trade Receivables 13      422,627,419       510,122,879   592,919,549 

Advances, Deposits & Prepayments 14        41,743,988         61,807,107   51,056,036 

Other Receivables 15          6,026,937         53,106,037   22,194,416 

Margin on Acceptance 16      146,051,685       214,084,240   232,113,484 

Cash & Cash Equivalents 17 
 
 
 
 
 
 

       14,596,322         22,403,795   12,646,118 

   ------------------  ------------------  ------------------ 

TOTAL ASSETS   1,280,118,166   1,387,061,743  1,465,205,909 

   ===========  ===========  =========== 
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES        

Shareholders' Equity:      455,066,862      467,892,760  462,422,620 

Share Capital 18        84,000,000         84,000,000   84,000,000 

Share Premium 19        15,000,000         15,000,000   15,000,000 

Reserve and Surplus 20      345,848,703      350,220,564  339,632,304 

Fair Valuation Surplus of Investment 21        10,218,159         18,672,196   23,790,316 

        
Non Current Liabilities:        57,591,005         9,428,888  6,378,852 

Long Term Loan  22       54,077,008        -  - 

Deferred Tax Liability 23         3,513,997            9,428,888            6,378,852 

        
Current Liabilities:       767,460,299      909,740,095  996,404,437 

Working Capital Loan 24       24,261,494         38,523,552   57,911,330 

Long Term Loan-Current Maturity 25       27,038,504          -  - 

Short Term Loan 26       70,228,085         47,877,364   90,057,782 

Trade Payables 27     497,208,105      692,939,448  761,041,964 

Other Payables 28     148,724,111      130,399,731  87,393,361 

        Total Liabilities       825,051,304  919,168,983   1,002,783,289 

   -------------------  -------------------  ------------------- 

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES    1,280,118,166 
 

  1,387,061,743   1,465,205,909 

   ===========  ===========  =========== 
Net Assets Value (NAV) Per Share  

 
42  54.17     55.08     54.76 

Net Assets Value (NAV) Per Share**   -      55.70                        
  

         55.05  
  ** Restated  

Annexed notes form an integral part of these Financial Statements.        

 
 

Sd/-   Sd/-  Sd/- 
Zahur Ahmed PhD Shahriar Ahmed Kamruzzaman FCA 
Managing Director Director Chief Financial Officer 

 

 

 Signed in terms of our report of even date. 

        Sd/- 
Place; Dhaka   Hussain Farhad & Co. 
Date: October 28,2020  Chartered Accountants 
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020 
      Value in Taka 

 Notes   2019-2020  2018-2019** 
 
 

REVENUE 29    2,751,013,453    3,537,789,856  

Cost of goods sold 30  (2,528,787,262)  (3,250,445,301) 

      
GROSS PROFIT        222,226,191 

 
      287,344,555 

      
OPERATING EXPENSES:   (139,098,356)  (160,128,080) 

 Other Operating Income/(Loss) 32          7,272,624      (1,474,859) 

 Administrative & selling overhead 33     (146,370,980)     (158,653,221) 

      
OPERATING PROFIT   83,127,835  127,216,475 
      
Financial Expenses 34       (58,405,412)  (76,909,098) 
Finance & Other Income 35           6,814,382  6,447,937 

PROFIT BEFORE  WPPF    31,536,805  56,755,314 
Workers Profit Participation Fund (WPPF) 40  (836,011)       (1,065,352) 
            PROFIT BEFORE  TAX   30,700,794  55,689,962 
      
Tax Expenses: 36  (18,272,655)  (28,466,527) 

Current tax   (23,248,209)  (17,344,052) 
Under provision of tax                    -  (7,503,759) 
Deferred tax income/(expenses)      23  4,975,554  (3,618,716) 

      
NET PROFIT AFTER TAX   12,428,139  27,223,435 
Other comprehensive income:      
Fair valuation surplus/(deficit) of investment 21  (8,454,037)  (5,118,120) 
Fair valuation surplus/(deficit) during the year   (9,393,375)  (5,686,800) 
Less: Deferred tax  income/(expense)   939,338  568,680 

      
   -----------------  ----------------- 
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME         3,974,102  22,105,315 
             ==========      ========== 
Basic Earnings Per Share (EPS) 41          1.48  2.93 
      
Basic Earnings Per Share (EPS)**          -                    3.24 

 

** Restated 

 

Annexed notes form an integral part of these Financial Statements.        

 
  
   
    

Sd/-   Sd/-  Sd/- 
Zahur Ahmed PhD Shahriar Ahmed Kamruzzaman FCA 
Managing Director Director Chief Financial Officer 

 
 

 Signed in terms of our report of even date. 

              
   
 

  Sd/- 
Place; Dhaka   Hussain Farhad & Co. 
Date: October 28,2020  Chartered Accountants 
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020 

Value in Taka 
 

Particulars  Share   Share   Tax    Retained   Capital   Fair    Total  

   Capital   Premium   Holiday   Earnings   Gain  
 

Valuation    

       Reserve       Surplus    

As at July 01, 2019 
  
84,000,000  

  
15,000,000  

  
129,700,699  

  
217,768,047 

  
2,751,818  18,672,196 

       
467,892,760 

Net profit after tax for the year                 -                    -    
                   

-    12,428,139               -                  -    
         

12,428,139 

Dividend Paid during the year 
2018-2019                 -                    -    

                   
-    (16,800,000)                  -                  -    

       
(16,800,000) 

Fair valuation surplus/(deficit) of 
investment                 -                    -    

                   
-                       -                  -    

   
(8,454,038) 

          
(8,454,037) 

As at June 30, 2020 
  
84,000,000  

  
15,000,000  

  
129,700,699  

  
213,396,186 

  
2,751,818  10,218,159 

  
455,066,862 

 
  

  
      

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019 

                                                                                                                              Value in Taka 
 

Particulars  Share   Share   Tax    Retained   Capital   Fair    Total  

   Capital   Premium   Holiday   Earnings   Gain  
 

Valuation    

       Reserve       Surplus    

As at July 01, 2018 
      

84,000,000  
      

15,000,000  
       

129,700,699  
       

204,733,275  
      

2,751,818  
      

23,790,316  459,976,108 

Prior Year adjustment (note -38) 
                       

-    
                       

-    
                          

-    
           

2,446,512  
                       

-    
                       

-    2,446,512 

As at July 01, 2018 (Adjusted) 
      

84,000,000  
      

15,000,000  
       

129,700,699  
       

207,179,787  
      

2,751,818  
      

23,790,316  462,422,620 

Net profit after tax for the period 
** 

                       
-    

                       
-    

                          
-    

         
27,223,435 

                     
-    

                       
-    27,223,435 

Dividend Paid during the year 
2017-2018 

                       
-    

                       
-    

                          
-    

       
(16,800,000) 

                     
-    

                       
-    (16,800,000) 

Fair valuation surplus/(deficit) of 
investments 

                       
-    

                       
-    

                          
-    

                          
-    

                     
-    

       
(5,118,120) (5,118,120) 

Prior Year adjustment(note -38) 
                       

-    
                       

-    
                          

-    
               

164,825  
                     

-    
                       

-    164,825 

As at June 30,  2019** 
      

84,000,000  
      

15,000,000  
       

129,700,699  
       

217,768,047 
      

2,751,818  
      

18,672,196  
       

467,892,760 
 

 
 

 
**Restated 

 

Annexed notes form an integral part of these Financial Statements.       

 

 

    
Sd/-   Sd/-  Sd/- 
Zahur Ahmed PhD Shahriar Ahmed Kamruzzaman FCA 
Managing Director Director Chief Financial Officer 

 
 

 

 

Signed in terms of our report of even date. 

              
 
  Sd/- 
Place; Dhaka   Hussain Farhad & Co. 
Date: October 28,2020  Chartered Accountants 
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020 

Value in Taka 
  Notes   2019-2020     2018-2019** 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:     

Collection from revenue      2,836,829,001     3,617,762,240  

Financial income from SND A/C                    7,693                   7,689  

Other income from operational foreign 
exchange gain/(loss)     

       7,900,003  
 

 (799,530) 

Bank charges & commission         (17,746,606)       (15,309,496) 

Income tax paid during the year         (25,199,824)       (23,074,775) 

Payment for costs and expenses    (2,796,239,568)  (3,402,727,970) 

Net cash generated from/(used in) operating 
activities (a)        5,550,700  

     
      175,858,159 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING  ACTIVITIES:      

Property, plant and equipment acquired         (30,072,394)       (14,139,875) 

Investment in Financial Assets           (4,579,594)         (4,275,000) 
Financial Income from FDRs            5,088,437            4,750,000  

Other income from dividend             1,766,452            1,766,452  

Net cash generated from/(used in) investing 
activities (b)        (27,797,099)  (11,898,423) 
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:      

Working capital loan received/(repaid)         (14,262,058)       (19,387,778) 

Long term loan received/(repaid)           81,115,512           - 

Short term loan received/(repaid)           22,349,482        (42,180,418) 

Dividend paid during the year         (16,359,838)       (15,676,022) 

Interest & other financial charges paid         (58,404,172)         (76,909,098) 

Net cash generated from/(used in) financing 
activities (c)  14,438,925  (154,153,316) 

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (a+b+c)   (7,807,473)  9,806,420 
Cash and cash equivalents on opening    22,403,795   12,646,118 
The effect of foreign exchange translation gain            -  (48,743) 
   -----------------  ----------------- 
Cash and cash equivalents on closing    14,596,322   22,403,795 
   ==========  ========== 
Net Operating Cash Flows Per Share      43   0.66         10.02 
Net Operating Cash Flows Per Share**     -          20.94 
Annexed notes form an integral part of these Financial Statements.        

** Restated 
 

  

Sd/-   Sd/-  Sd/- 
Zahur Ahmed PhD Shahriar Ahmed Kamruzzaman FCA 
Managing Director Director Chief Financial Officer 

 

 

 Signed in terms of our report of even date. 

                                                           Sd/- 
Place; Dhaka   Hussain Farhad & Co. 
Date: October 28,2020  Chartered Accountants 

 

 There is significant variance in net operating cash flows as compared to the last year. The 
Net Operating Cash Flows per Share is Tk. 0.66 but it was Tk. 10.02 in 2018-2019 which 
is mainly for decreasing of collection from revenue as compare to last year. This scenario 
is changeable time to time depending on different issues. 

 Please refer to Annexure-1 for Reconciliation of cash flow from operating activities under 
direct method and indirect method as per requirement of Bangladesh Securities & 
Exchange Commission (BSEC). 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020 
 

1. The company and its operation 
 

1.01 Legal Form of the Enterprise: 
 

The Apex Spinning & Knitting Mills Limited is a Public Limited Company registered under the 
Companies Act, 1913 (repealed in 1994). The Company was incorporated in Bangladesh vide 
RJSC Registration no. C-20149 dated on 25.11.1990.  Shares of the Company are listed in 
the Dhaka Stock Exchange Ltd. and Chittagong Stock Exchange Ltd. 

 

1.02 Address of Registered Office and Factory: 
 

The Registered Office of the Company is located at Rupayan Golden Age, 5th & 6th Floor, 99 
Gulshan Avenue, Gulshan, Dhaka-1212 and the Factory is located at Chandora, P.O. 
Chandora, P.S. Kaliakoir, Dist. Gazipur, Bangladesh. 

 

1.03 Nature of Business Activities: 
 

The Company owns and operates a 100% export oriented vertically integrated knitting, dyeing 
& finishing and garment factory. 

 

2. Basis of the preparation of the Financial Statements: 
 

2.01 Accounting Convention and Basis: 
 

These Financial Statements have been prepared under the Historical Cost Convention, 
Accrual and Going Concern basis in accordance with applicable International Accounting 
Standards (IASs) and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) and other laws and 
rules applicable in Bangladesh. 
 

2.02 Application of International Accounting Standards (IASs) and International 
Financial Reporting Standards(IFRSs): 
 

We have complied the following IASs & IFRSs as applicable for the financial statements for 
the year under review: 

 
 

 IAS-1  Presentation of financial statements 
 IAS-2    Inventories 
 IAS-7    Statement of Cash Flows   
 IAS-8    Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors 
 IAS-10 Events after the Reporting Period 
 IAS-12 Income Taxes 
 IAS-16   Property, Plant and Equipment 
 IAS-21   The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates 
 IAS-23   Borrowing Costs 
 IAS-24   Related Party Disclosures 
 IAS-33   Earnings Per Share 
 IAS-36 Impairment of Assets 
 IAS-37   Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets 
 IFRS-07   Financial Instruments: Disclosure 
 IFRS-09   Financial Instruments 
 IFRS-15   Revenue from Contracts with Customers 
 IFRS-16   Leases 

 
 

2.03 Compliance with local laws:  
 

The Financial Statements have been prepared in compliance with requirements of the 
Companies Act 1994, The Securities & Exchange Rules, 1987, The Income Tax Ordinance, 
1984, The Income Tax Rule 1984, The VAT & Supplementary Duty Act 2012, The VAT & 
Supplementary Duty Rule 2016 and other relevant local laws and rules. 
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2.04 Compliance with International Financial Reporting Standards(IFRSs):  
 

The Financial Statements have been prepared in compliance with requirements of IFRS’s & 
IASs. 
3. Significant Accounting Policy: 
 

3.01 Property, Plant and Equipment: 
 

These are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation in accordance with IAS 16 
“Property, Plant and Equipment”. 
 

3.01(i) Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment: 
 

Depreciation is provided to amortize the cost of the assets after commissioning, over the 
period of their expected useful lives, in accordance with the provisions of IAS 16: “Property, 
Plant and Equipment”. Depreciation is provided for the period in use of the assets. 
Depreciation is calculated on the cost of fixed assets in order to write off such amounts over 
the estimated useful lives of such assets. Depreciation has been charged on additions made 
during the year from the month in which those assets are ready to use.  Depreciation is 
provided on all fixed assets except land at the following rates on reducing balance basis over 
the periods appropriate to the estimated useful lives of the different types of assets:  
 

The rates of depreciation of each class of assets are as follows: 
 

Factory Building  20 % 
Civil Construction  10 % 
Plant & Machinery  20 % 
Effluent Treatment Plant  20% 
Gas Installation  15% 
Electric Installation   15%  
Boiler  15 % 
Generator   15 % 
Water Treatment Plant  20% 
Factory Equipment  15 % 
Other Equipment  15 % 
Deep Tube-well & Tanks  15% 
Motor Vehicles  20 % 
Furniture & Fixtures  10 % 
Laboratory Equipment  15% 
Office Equipment  15 % 
Motor Cycles  20% 
 
3.01(ii) Disposal of Property, Plant and Equipment: 
On disposal of fixed assets, the cost and accumulated depreciation are eliminated and gain or 
loss on such disposal is reflected in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive 
income, which is determined with reference to the net book value of the assets and sales 
proceeds. There was no disposal of any Property, Plant and Equipment during the period 
ended 30th June, 2020. 

 
3.02 Inventories: 
Inventories in hand as at 30th June, 2020 have been valued at lower of cost and net realizable 
value in accordance with IAS 2 “Inventories” after making due allowance for any obsolete or 
slow moving items. 
 

The cost of inventories comprises all costs of purchase, cost of conversion and other costs 
incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location & condition. 
 

3.03 Investments: 
Basis of fair value measurement: 
As fair value is a market based measurement, when measuring the fair value of an investment 
we considered the market value on Investments on reporting date.  
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3.04 Lease: 
Management of ASKML had decided in their meeting, dated February 02, 2020, that, ASKML 
will shift its full office place from “Rupayan Golden Age (5th & 6th Floor)”, 99 Gulshan Avenue, 
Gulshan Dhaka-1212 to “SKYMARK” 18, Gulshan Avenue, Gulshan, Dhaka-1212, within June 
30, 2020. As a result, ASKML did not renew its current rent contract. 

 
Due to COVID 19 pandemic crisis, ASKML could not shift its office place within the decided 
time frame. Again, management of ASKML had decided in their further meeting, dated 
September 27, 2020, that, ASKML will shift its full office place from “Rupayan Golden Age (5th 
& 6th Floor)”, 99 Gulshan Avenue, Gulshan Dhaka-1212 to “SKYMARK” 18, Gulshan Avenue, 
Gulshan, Dhaka-1212, as soon as possible once the COVID 19 pandemic is controlled. 

 
According to the primary assessment regarding lease for “office rent”, it has concluded that, 
ASKML has taken current office rent for short term period which comply with IFRS 16. Due to 
this reason, instead of applying the recognition requirements of IFRS 16, ASKML elect to 
account for lease payments as an expense on a straight-line basis over the period. 

 

After shifting in new office place and according to the new contractual arrangement, ASKML 
will account for IFRS 16.  
 

3.05 Current and Non-current assets and liabilities: 
The company presents assets and liabilities in the statement of financial position based on 
current/non-current classification. 

 
 

An asset is current when it is: 
 

 Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating 
circle 

 Held primarily for the purpose of trading 

 Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period or 

 Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a 
liability for at least twelve months. 
 

All other assets are classified as non-current. 
 

A liability is current when it is: 
 

 Expected to be settled in normal operating circle 

 Held primarily for the purpose of trading 

 Due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period or 

 There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement the liability for at least twelve 
months after the reporting periods 

 

The company classifies all other liabilities as non-current. 
 

Deferred tax assets/liabilities are classified as non-current assets/liabilities. 
 

3.06 Taxation: 
 

Provision for income tax has been made as per requirements of the Income Tax Ordinance, 
1984 and Income Tax Rules, 1984.  

 

3.07 Income Tax: 
 

The company is a Public Limited and 100% export oriented (Knit Garments) company, the 
applicable tax rate is 12.00% on business profit (as per SRO no. 255-Law/Income Tax/2017 
dated 01 August, 2017 & also as per SRO no. 266-Law/Income Tax/2018 dated 05 
September, 2018). All other income will be taxed on the provisions mentioned in the Income 
Tax Ordinance, 1984. The tax expense has been made based on the highest of 12% on 
business profit or TDS on export proceeds or tax on gross receipts during the period and 
provision has been made accordingly. However, the tax expense has been made @ 25.00% 
on interest income, exchange gain/(loss) and 20.00% on dividend income as per provision of 
the Income Tax Ordinance, 1984 and Income Tax Rules, 1984 and provision has been made 
accordingly. 
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3.08 Deferred Tax: 
 

Deferred tax assets or deferred tax liabilities have been accounted for in accordance with IAS 
12 “Income Taxes”.  
Deferred tax arises due to all temporary difference, deductible or taxable for the events or 
transactions recognized in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income. A 
temporary difference is the difference between the tax base of an asset or liability and its 
carrying amount/reported amount in the financial statements.  
Deferred tax asset or liability is the amount of income tax paid/payable or 
adjustable/recoverable in future period(s) recognized in the current period.  
The deferred tax asset/income or liability/expense does not create a legal 
liability/recoverability to and from the income tax authority.  

 

3.09 Trade Receivables: 
 

These are considered good and realizable. Export bills receivables are stated at the original 
invoice value.  
 

3.10 Payables and Accrued Expenses: 
 

Liabilities are recognized for amounts to be paid in the future for goods and services received, 
whether or not billed by the suppliers.  
 

3.11 Earnings Per Share: 
 

The Company calculates Earnings Per Share (EPS) in accordance with IAS 33 “Earnings Per 
Share” which has been shown on the face of statement of profit or loss and other 
comprehensive income and the computation of EPS is stated in Note 41. 

 

3.11(i) Basic Earnings 
 

This represents earnings for the year attributable to ordinary shareholders. There was no 
preference dividend and minority interest. The net profit after tax for the year has been 
considered as fully attributable to the ordinary shareholders. 

 

3.11(ii) Weighted Average Number of Ordinary Shares Outstanding during the Year 
 

This represents the number of ordinary shares outstanding at the beginning of the year plus 
the number of ordinary shares issued during the year multiplied by a time-weighting factor. 
The time-weighting factor is the number of days the specific shares are outstanding as a 
proportion of the total number of days in the period. 

 

3.11(iii) Basic Earnings Per Share 
 

This has been calculated by dividing the basic earnings by the weighted average number of 
ordinary shares outstanding during the year. 

 

3.11(iv) Diluted Earnings per Share 
 

No diluted EPS is required to be calculated for the year, as there was no scope for dilution 
during the year under review. 
 

3.12 Statement of Cash Flows: 
 

Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared in accordance with IAS 7 “Statement of Cash 
Flows” and the cash flows from the operating activities have been presented under direct 
method as required by the Securities and Exchange Rules 1987 and considering the 
provisions of paragraph 19 of IAS 7 which provides that “Entities are Encouraged to Report 
Cash Flows from Operating Activities using the Direct Method”. Reconciliation of cash flow from 
operating activities under direct method and indirect method has been given in Annexure -1. 
 

3.13 Foreign Exchange: 
 

Foreign currencies are converted into Bangladesh Taka at the rates ruling on the date of 
transaction and the balance in hand at the close of the business, at the rate prevailing on the 
Statement of Financial Position date in accordance with IAS 21 “The Effects of Changes in 
Foreign Exchange Rates”. The closing conversion rate was Tk. 83.95 & Tk. 84.95 per US 
Dollar for monetary items of assets & liabilities respectively. 
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3.14 Revenue Recognition: 
Exports are made against confirmed L/C and firm contracts. The sale proceeds are accounted 
for upon shipments and after satisfying all the conditions for revenue recognition as provided 
in IFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”. 
 

3.15 Other Income Recognition: 
Other Incomes have been recognized on accrual basis.  
 
3.16 Employee Benefit Obligations: 
The Company operates a contributory provident fund and a Group Insurance Scheme for its 
permanent employees. A Board of Trustee administrates the provident fund.  
 
3.17 Non-recognition of Workers’ Profit Participation and Welfare Fund (WPP & WF): 
 

We are 100% export oriented Readymade Garment Industry (RMG) and as per Labour Act 
2006 section 232(3) (amendment in 2013), Labour Rules, 2015 Chapter-xv from section 212-
226, Government framed a central fund and also provision made in rule 214 (1) ka for 
realization of 0.03% from export proceeds while realization. As a result, WPP & WF @ 5% on 
profit is not required to make provision for our company as our company is making payment 
through bank to the said central fund for participation of workers in the profit of company. 

 
3.18 Risk and uncertainties for use of estimates in preparation of financial 

statements: 
Preparation of Financial Statements in conformity with the International Accounting Standards 
(IAS) and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) requires management to make 
estimates and assumption that effect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and 
disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and 
revenues and expenses during the period reported. Actual results could differ from those 
estimates. Estimates are used for accounting of certain items such as long term contracts, 
depreciation and amortization, employees benefit plans, taxes, reserves and contingencies. 

 
4. Financial Risk Management: 

The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the 
Company’s financial risk management. The responsibility also includes developing and 
monitoring the Company’s risk management policies. To assist the Board in discharging its 
oversight responsibility, management has been made responsible for identifying, monitoring 
and managing the Company’s financial risk exposures. The Company’s exposure to the risks 
associated with the financial instruments and the risk management policies and procedures 
are summarized as follows: 
 

 Credit Risk 

 Liquidity Risk 

 Market Risk 

 Price Risk 

 Interest Rate Risk 

 Currency Risk 
 

4.01 Credit Risk: 
 

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an obligation 
and cause the other party to incur a financial loss, without taking into account the fair value of 
any collateral. Concentration of credit risk arises when a number of counter parties are 
engaged in similar business activities or have similar economic features that would cause their 
ability to meet contractual obligations to be similarly affected by changes in economic, political 
or other conditions. Concentrations of credit risk indicate the relative sensitivity of the 
Company’s performance to developments affecting a particular industry. As the Company is 
100% export oriented so the major customers of the Company are in Germany, USA, Poland,  
Belgium, Italy, Sweden, China and Spain. 
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The Trade Receivable are due from foreign customers for export. The balance from foreign 
customers are secured against firm contracts/letters of credit. Management assesses the 
credit quality of foreign customers, taking into account their financial position, past experience  
and other factors. As at the balance sheet date, there are no past due. Trade Receivable 
balances and the balance as on 30.06.2020 has subsequently been fully realized. For bank 
balances, financial institutions with strong credit ratings are accepted. Credit risk on bank 
balances is limited as these are placed with banks having good credit ratings.  
 

4.02 Liquidity Risk: 
 

Liquidity risk is the risk that the company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as 
they fall due. The company's approach to managing liquidity (Investment in Financial Assets, 
cash and cash equivalents) is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient 
liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without 
incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the company's reputation. Typically, the 
company ensures that it has sufficient Investment in Financial Assets & cash and cash 
equivalents to meet expected operational expenses, including financial obligation through 
preparation of the cash flow forecast, prepared based on time line of payment of the financial 
obligation and accordingly arrange for sufficient liquidity/fund to make the expected payment 
within due date. 
 

In extreme stressed conditions, the company may get support from the related company in the 
form of short term financing but till to date this was not required as the Company has not 
faced such a situation. 

 
4.03 Market Risk: 

 
Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates, interest 
rates and equity prices will affect the Company’s income or the value of its holdings of 
financial instruments. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control 
market risk exposures within acceptable parameters while optimizing returns. 
 
4.04 Price Risk: 
 
Price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will 
fluctuate because of changes in market prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk 
or currency risk), whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the individual 
financial instrument or its issuer, or factors affecting all similar financial instruments traded in 
the market. The company does not have any significant financial instrument that expose the 
price risk. 
 
4.05 Interest Rate Risk: 

 
Interest rate risk is the risk that arises due to changes in interest rates on borrowing. There 
was no such foreign currency loan which is subject to floating rates of interest. Local loans 
are, however, not significantly affected by fluctuations in interest rates. The Company has not 
entered into any type of derivative instrument in order to hedge interest rate risk as at the 
reporting date. 
 
4.06    Currency Risk: 

 
Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will 
fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. Currency risk arises mainly where 
receivables and payables exist due to transactions entered in foreign currencies. The 
Company is exposed to foreign currency risk on sales and purchases, which, are entered in a 
currency other than BDT. The foreign currency transactions are mainly occurred in USD and 
during the year under review the conversion rate of USD into BDT have not fluctuate 
materially.  
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5. Capital Risk Management: 
 
The objective of the Company when managing capital, i.e., its shareholders’ equity is to 
safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern so that it can continue to provide returns 
for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders; and to maintain a strong capital base to 
support the sustained development of its businesses. The Company manages its capital 
structure by monitoring return on net assets and makes adjustments to it in the light of 
changes in economic conditions. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the 
Company may adjust the amount of dividend paid to shareholders or issue new shares. 
 

6. Operating segments: 

  
 These financial statements have been prepared on the basis of single reportable 

segment. 

 All non-current assets of the Company as at 30th June 2020 are located in 
Bangladesh. 

 

7. Others: 
 

7.01 Comparative information 
 

Comparative information have been disclosed in respect to the year 2018-19 for all numerical 
information of the financial statements and also the narrative and descriptive information when 
it is relevant for understanding of the current periods financial statements as per IAS 1 para 
41. 
Last period figures have been rearranged, reclassified and restated where considered 
necessary to conform to current year’s presentation and applicable laws and regulations as 
follows: 

Head of 
Account 

Note 2018-2019 
2018-2019 
(Restated) 

Amount of 
items that is 
reclassified 

Nature of 
reclassificat

ion 

Reasons of 
Reclassification 

/Restated 

  
A B B-A 

  

Other 
Receivable
s 

15 49,679,196 53,106,037 3,426,841 Restated 

As per Financial 
Reporting Council 
(FRC) notification 
no.179/FRC/FRM/n
otification/2020/2 
dated July 07, 2020 
Prior year up to June 
30, 2019 Lapse 
amount of Provident 
Fund has been 
recognized as Other 
receivables. 

Margin on 
Acceptance 

16 - 214,084,240 214,084,240 Reclassified 

Margin on 
Acceptance' has been 
separated from Cash 
& Cash Equivalent 
and rearranged 
separately. 

Cash & 
Cash 
Equivalent
s 

17 236,488,035 22,403,795 (214,084,240) Reclassified Do 
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Head of 
Account 

Note 2018-2019 
2018-2019 
(Restated) 

Amount of 
items that is 
reclassified 

Nature of 
reclassificat

ion 

Reasons of 
Reclassification 

/Restated 

  A B B-A   

Reserve & 
Surplus 

20 344,998,530 350,220,564 5,222,034  Restated  

As per Financial 
Reporting Council 
(FRC) notification 
no.179/FRC/FRM/n
otification/2020/2 
dated July 07, 2020 
Prior year up to June 
30, 2019 Lapse 
amount from 
Provident Fund (PF) 
BDT (3,426,841-
856,710) =2,570,131 & 
'Provision for 
Contribution to PPF 
& WF' BDT 2,651,903 
has been adjusted 
with 'Retained 
Earnings'. 

Deferred 
Tax 
Liability 

23 8,572,178 9,428,888 856,710 Restated 

Deferred tax liability 
BDT 856,710 has been 
added due to prior 
period adjustment. 

Other 
Payables 

28 133,051,634 130,399,731 (2,651,903) Restated 

‘Provision for 
Contribution to PPF 
& WF’ BDT 2,651,903 
has been adjusted 
with Retained 
Earnings. 

 

7.02 Reporting currency and level of precision: 
 

The figures in the financial statements represent Bangladesh Currency (Taka), which have 
been rounded-off to nearest Taka. 
 
 

7.03 Reporting period: 
Financial Statements of the Company cover a year from 1st July to 30th June. 
 

 

7.04 Components of the Financial Statements: 
 

The Financial Statements include the following components as per IAS 1 “Presentation of 
Financial Statements”. 
 

i) Statement of Financial Position as at 30th June, 2020 
ii) Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income for the year ended 30th 

June, 2020 
iii) Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 30th June, 2020 
iv) Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 30th June, 2020 and 
v) Notes, comprising significant accounting policies and explanatory information. 

 
7.05 Authorization of the financial statements. 
 

Financial statements were authorized for issue by the Board of Directors of the Company      
in its Board Meeting held on 28th October, 2020. 
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                                                                                                                                   2019-2020 

8. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT: TK.  216,154,958 
SL.  PARTICULAR COST   DEPRECIATION  

NO.  Balance  Addition  Balance RATE Balance  Charged  Balance W.D.V 

  as at   During 
the   

as at  % as at   for the   as at  as at 

    30.06.19  year  30.06.20   30.06.19  year   30.06.20 30.06.20 

1 Land & Land Development      21,423,102                    -         21,423,102                        -                       -                      -      21,423,102  
2 Factory Building    255,373,615     4,976,501     260,350,116  20    231,585,315         5,613,573     237,198,888    23,151,228  
3 Civil Construction      54,980,771     3,613,596       58,594,367  10      40,885,121         1,679,988       42,565,109    16,029,258  
4 Plant & Machinery    673,645,655     1,354,950     675,000,605  20    613,343,102       12,227,711     625,570,812    49,429,793  
5 Effluent Treatment Plant      71,210,757                    -         71,210,757  20      50,309,324         4,180,287       54,489,610    16,721,147  
6 Gas Installation      23,449,836                    -         23,449,836  15      12,050,786         1,709,857       13,760,644      9,689,192  
7 Electric Installation      10,764,273         260,560       11,024,833  15        9,787,136           174,755         9,961,890      1,062,943  
8 Boiler      13,367,693                    -         13,367,693  15      12,365,782            150,287       12,516,069         851,624  
9 Generator    132,772,799   11,967,475     144,740,274  15      88,418,929         8,137,070       96,556,000    48,184,274  

10 Water Treatment Plant        8,262,353         210,660         8,473,013  20        7,357,758            198,474         7,556,232         916,781  
11 Factory Equipment      22,052,086     3,596,416       25,648,502  15      13,219,226         1,718,121       14,937,347    10,711,155  
12 Other Equipment        8,178,396         220,000         8,398,396  15        6,557,366            251,404         6,808,771      1,589,625  
13 Deep Tube-Well & Tanks      11,474,959     2,198,561       13,673,520  15        8,525,558            618,412         9,143,970      4,529,550  
14 Motor Vehicles        8,511,244                    -           8,511,244  20        8,232,809              55,687         8,288,496         222,748  
15 Furniture & Fixtures      29,879,152     1,673,675       31,552,827  10      20,331,747         1,079,192       21,410,939    10,141,888  
16 Laboratory Equipment           576,027                    -              576,027  15           560,110                2,388            562,498           13,529  
17 Office Equipment      14,407,454                    -         14,407,454  15      12,658,153            262,395       12,920,548      1,486,906  
18 Motor Cycles             40,625                  -                40,625  20             40,356                     54              40,410               215  
    1,360,370,796  30,072,394   1,390,443,190    1,136,228,578       38,059,655 1,174,288,232 216,154,958 

   Charged to:   

   Manufacturing Accounts      36,662,327 

   Profit & Loss Accounts         1,397,328 

                       38,059,655 

      

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT Tk. 224,142,218                                        2018-2019 
SL.  PARTICULAR COST   DEPRECIATION  

NO.  Balance  Addition  Balance RATE Balance  Charged  Balance W.D.V 

  as at   During 
the   

as at  % as at   for the   as at  as at 

    30.06.18  year  30.06.19   30.06.18  year   30.06.19 30.06.19 

1 Land & Land Development      21,423,102                -         21,423,102                         -                          -                         -      21,423,102  
2 Factory Building    255,373,615                -       255,373,615  20    225,638,240         5,947,075     231,585,315    23,788,300  
3 Civil Construction      53,665,771  1,315,000       54,980,771  10      39,368,892         1,516,230       40,885,121    14,095,650  
4 Plant & Machinery    669,939,150    3,706,505     673,645,655  20   598,981,544       14,361,557     613,343,102    60,302,553  
5 Effluent Treatment Plant      71,210,757                  -         71,210,757  20      45,083,965         5,225,358       50,309,324    20,901,433  
6 Gas Installation      23,449,836                -         23,449,836  15      10,039,189         2,011,597       12,050,786    11,399,050  
7 Electric Installation      10,764,273                 -         10,764,273  15        9,614,700            172,436         9,787,136         977,137  
8 Boiler      13,367,693                  -         13,367,693  15      12,188,975            176,808       12,365,782      1,001,911  
9 Generator    132,772,799                  -       132,772,799  15      80,591,776         7,827,153       88,418,929    44,353,870  

10 Water Treatment Plant        8,262,353                 -           8,262,353  20        7,131,609            226,149         7,357,758         904,595  
11 Factory Equipment      14,762,616   7,289,470       22,052,086  15      11,797,116         1,422,109       13,219,226      8,832,860  
12 Other Equipment        8,178,396                 -           8,178,396  15        6,271,302            286,064         6,557,366      1,621,030  
13 Deep Tube-Well & Tanks      10,964,959       510,000       11,474,959  15        8,020,075            505,483         8,525,558      2,949,401  
14 Motor Vehicles        8,511,244                  -           8,511,244  20        8,163,201              69,609         8,232,809         278,435  
15 Furniture & Fixtures      28,667,452  1, 211,700       29,879,152  10      19,387,381            944,366       20,331,747      9,547,405  
16 Laboratory Equipment           576,027                  -              576,027  15           557,302                2,809            560,110           15,917  
17 Office Equipment      14,300,254       107,200       14,407,454  15      12,363,641            294,512       12,658,153      1,749,301  
18 Motor Cycles             40,625                  

-    

            40,625  20             40,288                     67              40,356                269  
    1,346,230,922 14,139,875  

   
1,360,370,796    1,095,239,195       40,989,382  1,136,228,578  224,142,218  

   Charged to:   

   Manufacturing Accounts      39,680,828 

   Profit & Loss Accounts         1,308,554 

                       40,989,382 

            30.06.2020 30.06.2019   

9. INVESTMENT: TK. 21,896,375 
 

(i) Apex Foods Limited (Public Limited Company)    20,326,925     29,720,300 

 (Total number of Shares 169,250 and Total cost of Shares Tk. 8,973,415.)    
(ii) Central Depositary Bangladesh Limited 1,569,450  1,569,450 
 (571,181 Share of Tk. 10/- each including 414,236 Bonus 

Shares and 56,945 Right Shares @ Tk. 10/- each.) 
   

  ---------------  --------------- 
  21,896,375  31,289,750  
  =========  ======== 

Market Price of Listed Company Shares  
 

Apex Foods Limited 120.10 175.60 
 Investment in shares of Apex Foods Limited has been valued at market price in accordance with 

IFRS -9 “Financial Instruments.” 



APEX SPINNING & KNITTING MILLS LIMITED                                 Annual Report 2019-2020 

55 

 

30.06.2020 30.06.2019 
 

10. INVESTMENT IN FINANCIAL ASSETS: TK 68,854,594 
 

 Fixed deposits A/C with EBL  68,854,594  64,275,000 
 =========  ======== 

 

 FDR’s are made for more than one year i.e. 380 days. 
 
11. SECURITY DEPOSITS : TK 10,058,150 

 

Security Deposits to TGTDCL 8,035,300  8,035,300 
Guarantee Margin to EBL for TGTDCL 1,607,053  1,607,053 
Security Deposits to Multi Securities & Services Ltd 1,797  1,797 
Security Deposits for Office Rent 405,000  405,000 
Security Deposits for TNT & Mobile 9,000  9,000 
 ---------------  --------------- 
 10,058,150  10,058,150 
 =========  ======== 

 Security deposits are made to above statutory bodies and hence secured. 
 
12. INVENTORIES: TK. 332,107,738 
Finished Goods          Quantity    

T Shirts  30,496 Doz 37,472,460  5,902,749 

 30,496 Doz 37,472,460  5,902,749 
Work in Process      
Dyed Fabric 68,371 Kg      32,655,179         26,577,162  
Knitted Fabric 22,389 Kg        6,420,362         18,895,181  
Garments & Fabrics (1,348,522 Mtr, 

74,883 kg fabrics) 71,838 Doz 
      95,766,060  

 
      21,903,870  

   134,841,601  67,376,213 
Raw Materials      

Yarn 271,380 Kg       78,587,832        68,207,564  
Dyes & Chemicals 103,767 Kg       48,656,375        23,755,820  

   127,244,207  91,963,384 
Accessories   32,549,470  30,530,221 

   ----------------  ---------------- 

      332,107,738     195,772,567 
   =========  ========= 

 The above Inventories are as per physical checking made, valued and counted by Inventory team 
consists of Management staff and Internal Auditors.  

 Inventories in hand have been valued at lower of cost and net realizable value. 
 Inventories are hypothecated against working capital loan facilities from the Banks.  
   
13. TRADE RECEIVABLES: TK 422,627,419 

 
 

 Export Bills Receivable     422,627,419  510,122,879 
 

   ==========    =========== 
 Trade receivables are considered good. The ageing of the trade receivables are given below: 

Ageing of the trade receivable   Amount (Tk.)   Amount (Tk.) 
30 Days   205,589,300  193,431,688 
60 Days   147,768,478  308,274,309 
90 Days            -  8,416,882 

120 Days             69,269,641                    - 
 
 
 

  ___ -----------------
---- 

            ----------------
--    422,627,419  510,122,879 

   =========  ========= 

 Trade receivables are good & realized in full subsequently. 

 No balance with related parties & directors. 

 Trade receivables are hypothecated against working capital loan facilities from the Banks. 
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                    30.06.2020          30.06.2019 
 

 

14. ADVANCES, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS:  TK. 41,743,988 
 

 

Advance Income Tax Note # 14.a  36,167,128  59,763,767 
Advance against expenses   5,576,860  2,043,340 
   ----------------  ---------------- 
   41,743,988  61,807,107  
   =========  ========= 

 
 

14.a ADVANCE INCOME TAX:  TK. 36,167,128 
 
 

Opening Balance   59,763,767  49,895,187 
Add: Paid during the year   25,199,824  23,074,775 
Less: Adjustment during the year   48,796,463  13,206,195 
   ----------------  ----------------  
Closing Balance   36,167,128  59,763,767  
   =========  =========  

 

 No amount was due by Directors and other Officers of the Company or by Associated 
Undertaking. 

 All advance against expenses are adjusted regularly and considered good. 
 
 

15. OTHER RECEIVABLES:  TK. 6,026,937 
 
 

             Cash incentive receivable   787,000  47,817,900 
             FDRs Interest receivable               1,434,471                1,861,296 
             --------------              -------------- 
            Sub Total   2,221,471  49,679,196 
      

 

PF Lapse Receivable (Employer Portion)      
Opening Balance   3,426,841  - 
Restated Amount                -  3,262,016 
 

        --------------  -------------- 
Adjustment amount   3,426,841  3,262,016 

   ----------------  ---------------- 
           Addition during the year             378,625             164,825 
   ----------------  ---------------- 
           Sub Total   3,805,466  3,426,841 
   ----------------  ---------------- 
           Total   6,026,937  53,106,037 
   =========  ========= 

 

 Cash incentive receivable represents the audited certificate amount receivable from Bank 
against cash incentive. The amount has subsequently been received from the Bangladesh 
Bank through Eastern Bank Limited.  
 

 The ageing of the Cash incentive receivable are maximum 06 (Six) months. 
 

 FDR’s interest receivable represents the provision of interest receivable on FDR’s up to 
30.06.2020. 

 Here to forfeited amount of BDT 3,262,016 of employer's contribution to provident fund 
has been accounted for according to IAS 1. 

    
16. MARGIN ON ACCEPTANCE: TK 146,051,685 

 
 

 Margin on Acceptance-EBL  146,051,685  214,084,240 
 =========  ========= 
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                                                                                                 30.06.2020                 30.06.2019 
   
Margin on Acceptance (EBL) has converted in BDT at closing rate @ 83.95 per USD as on 30.06.2020 & 
as compare to BDT @ 83.50 per USD as on 30.06.2019 which has retained for settlement of back to 
back L/C in due date. 
 

Margin Account with Eastern Bank Ltd. $  1,739,746.10  $  2,563,883.11 
                                                                                                            
17. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS: TK. 14,596,322 
 

Cash and Bank Balances:     
Cash in hand  20,000      20,000  
Cash at bank :    

CD Account with Eastern Bank Ltd., Dhaka              8,004                9,154  
CD Account with Dhaka Bank Ltd., Dhaka            26,017              26,707  
CD Account with SCB, Dhaka          190,324            189,432  
CD Account with Mutual Trust Bank Ltd, Chandora       3,323,395              49,939  
CD Account with Mutual Trust Bank Ltd, Dilkusha, Dhaka            82,780              83,470  
CD Account with AB Bank Ltd,  Dhaka            37,408              38,098  
CD Account with Dutch Bangla Bank Ltd.,  Dhaka       1,480,838         4,158,075  
CD Account with Eastern Bank Ltd. -Dividend,  Dhaka                 183                   183  
CD Account with HSBC-Dividend,  Dhaka          482,104                   360  
Foreign Currency Account with Eastern Bank Ltd., Dhaka-USD       7,590,671       16,464,454  
Foreign Currency Account with HSBC, Dhaka-USD          398,877            396,887  
SND Account with SCB, Dhaka          734,502            735,192  
SND Account with Eastern Bank Ltd., Principal Branch, Dhaka          198,189            207,671  
SND Account with HSBC , Dhaka              1,256                1,247  
CC Accounts with Eastern Bank Ltd., Dhaka            21,775              22,925  

                    
10,304  

    14,576,322   22,383,795 
 14,596,322  22,403,795 
 ==========  ========== 

 

Foreign Currency Account balances in USD are given below which has converted in BDT at closing rate 
@ 83.95 per USD as on 30.06.2020 & as compare to BDT @ 83.50 per USD as on 30.06.2019: 
 

 In USD  In USD 

Foreign Currency Account with Eastern Bank Ltd., Dhaka $    90,418.95  $  197,179.09 
Foreign Currency Account with HSBC, Dhaka $      4,751.36  $      4,753.14 

    

 Cash in hand was physically counted at the year end.  All Bank balances were reconciled 
and confirmed by bank statements. 

  

18. SHARE CAPITAL: TK. 84,000,000 
 Authorized Capital: 

30,000,000 Ordinary Shares of Tk. 10/= each. 300,000,000 300,000,000 
   ========== ========= 
 Issued, Subscribed & Paid up Capital: 

8,400,000 Ordinary Shares of Tk. 10/= each fully paid 84,000,000 84,000,000 
   ========= ========= 
 

 
Allotment Date Types of 

Issue 
No. of 
Share 

Face value 
of per 
share 

Amount 
(BDT) Basis of allotment 

25th November, 1990 ( during the 
incorporation) Ordinary 10,000 100 1,000,000 

Cash (Banking 
Channel) 

Allotment made during the financial year 
1993-94 Ordinary 690,000 100 69,000,000 

Cash (Banking 
Channel) 

Bonus Share declaration on 22nd January, 
1997 Bonus 140,000 100 14,000,000 Bonus Share 

Total  840,000 100 84,000,000  

Split the share on 13th November, 2011 - 8,400,000 10 84,000,000 Per share 100 into 10 
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                                                                                                 30.06.2020                 30.06.2019 
 
 There was no preference share issued by the Company. 

[Composition of Shareholdings as on 30.06.2020:  
Sponsors & Directors 54.81% 54.81% 
Institutions 22.59% 22.70% 
Foreign Shareholders 0.25% 2.87% 
Public - Local 22.35% 19.62% 
 ------------ ----------- 

  100.00% 100.00% 
  ======= ======= 
The Company had the following non-resident Shareholders on 30.06.2020: 
 

                   NAME FOLIO/BO  NO. NO. OF SHARE 
Smith New Court Far East Ltd. 
 
 

00011 600 
                        -do- 03777 2,000 
Hong Kong Bank Int’l Trustee Ltd. 04037 6,360 
Somers Nominees ( Far East ) Ltd. 04038 10,800 
Investors Bank & Trust Company 04065 200 
UBS Securities (East Asia) Ltd. 04689 720 
  --------- 
  20,680 
  ===== 
 Dividend is paid to non-resident shareholders through their local agents. 
The distribution showing the number of shareholders and their shareholdings in 
percentages are as follows: 
No. of Share Holders Range Total Holdings In % 
              1,756 Less than & equal 500 Shares 255,165 3.04 

471 501  to     5,000 Shares 751,623 8.95 
27 5001  to   10,000 Shares 186,519 2.22 
16 10,001  to   20,000 Shares 214,800 2.55 
3 20,001  to   30,000 Shares 72,499 .86 
5 30,001  to   40,000 Shares 174,509 2.08 
3 40,001  to   50,000 Shares 140,800 1.68 
1 50,001  to 100,000 Shares 85,000 1.01 
4 100,001  to 200,000 Shares 544,000 6.48 
6 Over 200,000 Shares 5,975,085 71.13 

--------  ------------- --------- 
2,292  8,400,000 100.00 
=====  ======== ===== 

                                                                                                     
19. SHARE PREMIUM Tk. 15,000,000 15,000,000 15,000,000 
   ========= ========= 
 This is as per last account and represents premium of Tk. 50/= per Share of 300,000 Ordinary 

Shares of Tk. 100 each.  
                                                                                                  

     

20. RESERVE AND SURPLUS: TK  345,848,703 

 Reserve for Re-Investment        129,700,699        129,700,699  
 Retained Earnings        213,396,186       217,768,047 
 Capital Gain            2,751,818            2,751,818  

    345,848,703    350,220,564 
                                                                                            =========               ========= 

 

 Capital gain represents the difference between present market value and cost of 100.50 
decimal of land transferred to Apex Yarn Dyeing Limited during the accounting year 2001-
2002. 
 

 Reserve for Re-Investment represents Tax Holiday Reserve made up to the Tax Holiday 
period of the Company. The reserve and surplus is utilized in the Company’s business. 
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                                                                                                   30.06.2020               30.06.2019 
 

21. FAIR VALUATION SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) OF INVESTMENT: TK 10,218,159 
 

 Opening Balance   18,672,196  23,790,316 
 Adjustment for fair valuation surplus/(deficit) during the year (8,454,037)  (5,118,120) 
    ---------------  --------------- 
    10,218,159  18,672,196 
    ========  ======== 
 
 

 
     

 Fair valuation surplus/(deficit) of investments represents the difference of market value of the listed 
Company’s share on the closing date and the last Balance Sheet price. 

    
22. LONG TERM LOAN: TK. 54,077,008 

Long Term Loan- (EBL) –Stimulus Package   54,077,008         - 
   ---------------  --------------- 
   54,077,008        - 

   =========  ========= 
Company has availed the above loan to meet up salary & wages expenses as per Government 
declaration of stimulus fund under BRPD Circular no. 07 dated 2nd April 2020 and subsequent Circular in 
this regard. Repayment to be made in 18 equal monthly installments including 6 months moratorium 
period & bears charge @ 2.00% on of loan amount. 
 
 

23. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITY: TK. 3,513,997 
 

a) Book Value of Depreciable Assets  216,154,958      224,142,218 

Tax Base of Depreciable Assets 206,598,238  212,315,488 

Net Taxable Temporary Difference 9,556,720  11,826,730 

Effective Tax Rate 12.00%  12.00% 

Closing Deferred tax (Assets)/Liability arising from assets 1,146,806  1,419,208 

Opening Deferred Tax Balance 1,419,208  1,754,820 

Deferred Tax Income/(Expense) 272,401  335,613 
 

   

b) Unrealized Bank Interest on FDRs  1,434,471  1,861,296 

Effective Tax Rate 25.00%  25.00% 

Closing Deferred tax (Assets)/Liability Arising from 
Unrealized FDRs Interest 

358,618 
 

465,324 

Opening Deferred Tax Balance 465,324  484,375 

Deferred Tax Income/(Expense) 106,706  19,051 

    
c) Unrealized Foreign Exchange gain/(Loss) (627,379)  (675,329) 

Effective Tax Rate 25.00%  25.00% 

Closing Deferred tax (Assets)/Liability Arising from 
Unrealized exchange gain/Loss 

(156,845) 
 

(168,832) 

Opening Deferred Tax Balance          (168,832)              170,937 

Deferred Tax Income/(Expense) (11,987)  339,769 

    

d) Cash Incentive Receivable 787,000  47,817,900 

Effective Tax Rate 10.00%  10.00% 

Closing Deferred tax (Assets)/Liability Arising from 
Cash Incentive Receivable 

78,700 
 

4,781,790 

Opening Deferred Tax Balance          4,781,790               509,847 

Deferred Tax Income/(Expense) 4,703,090  (4,271,943) 
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 30.06.2020  30.06.2019 
e) PF Lapse Receivable    

Opening Balance 3,426,841           - 

Restated Amount                    -  3,262,016 

Adjusted Amount 3,426,841  3,262,016 

Addition during the year 378,625  164,825 

Total 3,805,466  3,426,841 

Effective Tax Rate 25.00%  25.00% 

Closing Deferred tax (Assets)/Liability Arising from 
PF lapse Receivable 

951,367 
 

856,710 

Opening Deferred Tax Balance            856,710               815,504 

Deferred Tax Income/(Expense) (94,656)  (41,206) 

    

Deferred Tax Income/(Expense) a+b+c+d+e 4,975,554  (3,618,717) 

 
f) Deferred Tax (Assets)/Liability Arising from Other  

 
 

 

Comprehensive Income:    

Gains on hedging instruments in cash flow hedges            -             - 
Tax for (Losses)/gains on available for sale investments @ 10% 1,135,351  2,074,688 

Revaluation of property                   -                    - 

Foreign exchange gain for foreign operation                    -                     - 

Closing Deferred tax (Assets)/Liability arising from Fair 
Valuation Surplus of investment 1,135,351  2,074,688 

Opening Deferred Tax Balance 2,074,688  2,643,369 

Deferred Tax Income/(Expense)  939,337  568,680 

   ---------------  --------------- 

Deferred Tax Liability (a+b+c+d+e+f) 3,513,997  9,428,888 

 =========  ========= 
       
                       
24. WORKING CAPITAL LOAN: TK. 24,261,494 
     Overdraft-Eastern Bank Ltd, Principal Br. Dhaka 19,608,019        33,767,854 
     Overdraft-HSBC, Dhaka 4,653,475  4,755,697 
 ----------------  ---------------- 
 24,261,494     38,523,552 
 =========  ======== 

 

 The Working Capital Loan facility with Eastern Bank Ltd, Principal Branch, Dhaka for BDT 
8.00 Crore and HSBC for BDT 3.00 Crore against hypothecation as Cash Credit basis for 
one year. The loan is secured against Inventories and Trade Receivables of the Company. 
The loan bears interest @ 9.00% p.a from April 2020 before which interest was @ 11.00% 
pa with EBL & @ 9.00% pa with HSBC.  

[ 

   
25. LONG TERM LOAN-CURRENT MATURITY: TK. 27,038,504 

 

Long Term Loan- (EBL) –Stimulus Package   27,038,504         - 
   ---------------  --------------- 
   27,038,504        - 
   =========  ========= 

    
26. SHORT TERM LOAN: TK. 70,228,085 

Time Loan-Eastern Bank Limited   7,684,917  11,935,768 
Import Loan- Eastern Bank Limited   62,543,168  35,941,596 

   ---------------  --------------- 
   70,228,085  47,877,364 
   =========  =========   
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          30.06.2020                   30.06.2019 

 Time loan from Eastern Bank Limited represents the amount payable to them against 
import of machinery and spare parts and will be settled within next twelve months. The 
loan bears interest @ 9.00% p.a from April 2020.  
 

 Import loan from Eastern Bank Limited represents the amount payable to them against 
import of dyes, chemicals and accessories as part of continuous process. 

 
 

27. TRADE PAYABLES: TK.  497,208,105            
   497,208,105  692,939,448 
   =========  ========= 

 

 This represents local procurement and import of Raw Materials (Yarn, Dyes & Chemicals) 
under Back-to-Back L/C on 30 to 120 days deferred payment and Sight L/C, which has 
been subsequently adjusted and moves in cycle in this trade. 

 

28. OTHER PAYABLES: TK. 148,724,111 
Clearing & Forwarding               6,492,487               6,044,512  
Insurance premium                    21,679               1,113,225  
Power, Fuel and Water              3,832,282   5,430,170  

Telephone, Telex & Fax                    30,370                      9,019  
Salaries, Wages and Overtime             98,876,058             48,098,713  
Audit Fees                  402,500                  230,000  
Current Tax Liabilities 28.a            23,248,208             48,796,462  
Provident Fund Payable               3,625,165               7,721,327  
Unclaimed Dividend  28.b               9,303,988               8,863,826  
Payable for Office Rent  
 

 972,714  481,957 
Payable for Other Office Expenses                  519,997              1,351,890 
Tax Payable to Govt.               1,286,108              2,173,220 
VAT payable to Govt.               112,555  85,410 

  -----------------  ---------------- 
  148,724,111  130,399,731 

  =========  ========= 
28.a CURRENT TAX LIABILITIES: Tk. 23,248,208   
Opening Balance  48,796,462  37,154,846 
Add: Provision during the year  23,248,208  17,344,052 
Less:  Adjustment during the year  48,796,462             5,702,436            
  -----------------  ---------------- 

  23,248,208  48,796,462 
 

 

 =========  ========= 
28.b UNCLAIMED DIVIDEND: Tk. 9,303,988 

Opening Balance  8,863,826  7,739,848 
Add: Dividend approved at AGM  16,800,000  16,800,000 

              25,663,826            24,539,848 
Less:  Payment during the year             16,359,838            15,676,022 

  -----------------  ---------------- 
  9,303,988  8,863,826 

  =========  ========= 
 Unclaimed dividend represents the dividend warrants issued but not presented to the 

Bank by the Shareholders within 30th June 2020 and the unclaimed dividend was Tk. 
92,98,015.84 as on September 30, 2020. 
 

 The breakup of unclaimed dividend as on 30.06.2020 is as follows: 
Year Taka 

1994-95 to 2015-16 6,618,520 

2016-17 1,008,494 

2017-18 1,181,736 

2018-19 495,238 

 9,303,988 
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                                                                                               2019-2020         2018-2019 
29. REVENUE: TK 2,751,013,453[[[ 

 
Quantity in Doz. 

 
USD 

   

 ----------------- ---------------
-- 

------------------  ----------------- 

T, Polo & Sweat Shirts 1,970,209 32,512,100  2,751,013,453  3,537,789,856 

 ========= ========  ===========    =========== 

 Country wise break up of export for the period from July 2019 to June 2020: 
 

Country   Quantity in Doz   USD  

AUSTRALIA 15,856 256,910 

BELGIUM 109,542 1,756,114 

CANADA 19,955 321,964 

CHILE 24,335 387,531 

CHINA 82,431 1,766,984 

COLUMBIA 4,844 74,107 

CROATIA 11,858 189,312 

DENMARK 28,338 455,115 

DUBAI, UAE 23,773 368,542 

GERMANY 301,182 5,018,125 

GREAT BRITAIN 121,242 1,997,945 

HONG KONG 5,984 88,739 

INDIA 11,673 183,484 

INDONESIA 4,335 70,788 

ITALY 146,937 2,390,519 

JAPAN 38,884 602,756 

KOREA 12,554 190,316 

MALAYSIA 9,907 148,332 

MEXICO 24,916 377,959 

NETHERLANDS 64,085 1,292,985 

NEW ZEALAND 5,485 86,046 

NORWAY 27,141 442,491 

PANAMA 54 750 

PERU 7,938 123,439 

PHILIPPINES 5,310 81,500 

POLAND 360,173 5,830,350 

RUSSIA 70,386 1,077,882 

SAUDI ARABIA 708 9,272 

SERBIA 5,289 83,549 

SOUTH AFRICA 7,966 126,380 

SPAIN 78,068 1,282,802 

SWEDEN 124,834 2,052,917 

SWITZERLAND 29,060 476,120 

TAIWAN 3,697 56,104 

THAILAND 4,563 69,570 

TURKEY                                                              26,842 407,981 

URUGUAY                                                             4,650 71,029 

USA                                                              143,743 2,268,162 

VIETNAM                                                                1,671 27,229 

 ----------------- ----------------- 

Total 1,970,209            32,512,100                               

 ========= ========= 
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                                                                                                     2019-2020               2018-2019 
                                                                    
30. COST OF GOODS SOLD: TK. 2,528,787,262 

 

Quantity  Notes    
Opening Stock of Finished Goods     4,318 Doz  5,902,749          32,999,377 
Add: Cost of Production  1,996,387 Doz 31    2 560,356,973     3,223,348,673 

 2,000,705 Doz  2,566,259,722  3,256,348,050 
Less : Closing  Stock  of  Finished  Goods 30,496 Doz  37,472,460        5,902,749 

 1,970,209 Doz      -------------------     ------------------- 

      2,528,787,262    3,250,445,301 

    ===========  =========== 
                                                                                                                

31. COST OF PRODUCTION: TK.  2,560,356,973 
 
 

 

OPENING STOCK: Quantity    
Raw Materials:      

Yarn 208,946 Kg       68,207,564           53,876,010  
Dyes & Chemicals 53,146 Kg       23,755,820           22,038,279  

           91,963,384          75,914,289 
Work in Process:        
Dyed, Knitted and Greige Fabric &            113,895 Kg         67,376,213  

 
         57,006,251 

Garments 28,426 Doz      

Accessories           30,530,221          30,329,513 
        189,869,818        163,250,053 

ADD: PURCHASE FOR THE YEAR     
Raw Materials(Imported) :      

Yarn         305,436,027           398,217,500  
Dyes & Chemicals          105,856,442           133,767,863  
Accessories           53,035,577             73,541,013  

         464,328,046          605,526,375 
 
 

     
Raw Materials (Local) :      

Yarn     336,501,871           597,594,720  
Dyes & Chemicals    123,508,178           170,785,724 
Accessories    311,576,137           469,797,573  

        771,586,186       1,238,178,017 

        1,235,914,232       1,843,704,392 

        1,425,784,050       2,006,954,445 

LESS : CLOSING  STOCK       
Raw Materials:      

Yarn 271,380 Kg        78,587,832         68,207,564  
Dyes & Chemicals 103,767 Kg        48,656,375         23,755,820  
      
 
 

     
         127,244,207          91,963,384  

Work in Process:        

Dyed, Knitted and Greige Fabric &     89,760 Kg 134,841,601  67,376,213  
Garments 71,838 Doz    

Accessories           32,549,470          30,530,221 

 
 
 
 

        294,635,278        189,869,818 

   -----------------  ----------------- 
Total Consumption     1,131,148,772  1,817,084,627 

 
 
 
 
 
 

  -----------------  ----------------- 
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     2019-2020  2018-2019 

Factory Overhead :      

Carriage inward            6,307,986            8,131,501  
Electricity            2,078,705            1,038,861  

Gas, Fuel & Lubricant        106,063,614          84,626,480  
Insurance Premium            4,263,244            7,815,046  
Repairs & Maintenance          63,140,253          71,737,053 

Telephone Charges                 56,359                 19,741  

Wages, Salaries & Allowance     1,172,870,059    1,157,211,626  

Bank Charges & Commission          12,235,231            8,244,133  
Depreciation          36,662,327          39,680,828  
Fire Fighting Exp.               212,802               320,320  

Travelling & Conveyance             7,153,402            6,305,073  
Testing Bill          15,569,958          17,666,327  
Uniform & Liveries 
 
 
 
 
 

              307,385               319,884  
Chemical for Effluent Treatment Plant               280,600               682,482  
Entertainment            1,536,846            1,750,742 
UD & UP Expenses               469,430               713,949 
    2,560,356,973    3,223,348,673 
       

 During the year 2019-20 the Company has imported goods on C & F basis. 

 Cash incentive has been adjusted with the local yarn cost. 
 

32. OTHER OPERATING INCOME/(LOSS): TK 7,272,624 

Foreign Exchange Gain/(Loss):    

Foreign Exchange Gain/(Loss) from Operations           7,900,003  (799,530) 

       Foreign Exchange Gain/(Loss) from Translations           (627,379)  (675,329) 

 7,272,624  (1,474,859) 
      

33. ADMINISTRATIVE & SELLING OVERHEAD:  TK.  146,370,980 
AGM Expenses                117,357                 151,656  
Audit Fee (Including VAT)                402,500                 230,000  
Bank Charges & Commission            5,511,375              7,065,362  
Board Meeting Fees                  14,500                   20,000  
Depreciation            1,397,328              1,308,554  
Director’s Remuneration             3,540,000              3,600,000  
Entertainment            1,125,454              2,769,331  
Export Processing & Handling Expenses            4,095,810            11,401,674  
Clearing & Forwarding Expenses          23,964,512            29,610,884  
Insurance Premium                706,954                 577,559  
Legal & Professional Fees            1,022,225                 490,377  
Medical Expenses                190,636   315,321 
Newspapers & Periodicals                  15,717                  12,908  
Postage & Stamp                  62,046                   71,965  
Power & Fuel                721,837                 780,960  
Printing Expenses             1,435,761             2,572,103 
Stationery Expenses                997,849   851,020 
Publicity & Advertisement                208,783                 223,905  
Renewal & Fees            8,040,429              7,692,218  
Rent & Rates            5,774,728              6,601,941  
Repairs & Maintenance            6,692,300             9,066,821 
Salaries & Allowances          63,351,178            57,527,009 
Sales Promotional Expenses            4,620,590              3,918,728  
Subscription & Donation                  27,000                 289,100  
Travelling & Conveyance            3,156,457              2,969,590 
Telephone, Fax and Radio Link                586,100                 575,125  
Transportation Expenses            8,591,554              7,959,110  

    146,370,980   158,653,221 
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  2019-2020  2018-2019 
 Directors’ Remuneration paid to following Directors for their full time service: 

a. Mr. Zahur Ahmed PhD                          1,770,000  1,800,000 
b. Mr. Shahriar Ahmed                          1,180,000  1,200,000 
c. Mr. Kazi Faruq Kader                             590,000  600,000 
 3,540,000 3,600,000 

 Audit Fee is fixed by the Shareholders in the Annual General Meeting and does not 
include any other remuneration to Auditors. 

 Sales promotional expenses include cost of samples and courier cost for distribution of 
free samples to the buyers. 

 There are 6 (six) board meetings held during the period. 
                                                                                          
34. FINANCIAL EXPENSES:  TK.  58,405,412            
 

Interest on Term Loan 1,306,937  4,627,116 

Interest on Overdraft 709,205  170,776 

Financial Charges 56,389,270        72,111,206 

 ---------------  --------------- 
 58,405,412        76,909,098 
 =========  ========= 
35. FINANCE  &  OTHER INCOME:  TK. 6,814,382 

Interest earned on SND Account                   7,693                  7,689  
Dividend Income           1,766,452           1,766,452  
Interest on FDRs           4,661,612   4,673,796 
Other Income from PF Lapse ( Employer Portion)           378,625          -  

 ---------------  --------------- 
            6,814,382  6,447,937 

 =========  ========= 

    
36. TAX EXPENSES:  TK.  18,272,655 

  Current Tax  ( (Note - 36.a)                  23,248,209   17,344,052 
  Under Provision of Tax                    -     7,503,759 
  Deferred Tax Expenses/(Income)-Note 36.b                 (4,975,554)          3,577,510 

 ---------------  --------------- 
 18,272,655  28,425,321 

 =========  ========= 
36.a CURRENT TAX:  TK.  23,248,208 

Tax on FDRs & SND Interest Income           1,274,033  
        1,189,422  

Tax on Dividend Income               353,290               353,290  
Tax on Cash Incentive        5,344,397            1,055,875  
Tax on Gain/(Loss) of Foreign Exchange Transactions           1,975,001             (199,882) 
Tax on Business Profit         14,301,488          14,945,347 

 ---------------  --------------- 
 23,248,209  17,344,052 
 =========  ========= 

 Current tax consists of tax provision made on business income and realized amount of 
finance & other income for the period from 1st July 2019 to 30th June 2020.  

 

36.b DEFERRED TAX EXPENSES/(INCOME):  TK. (4,975,554) 

Deferred Tax Exp./(Income) on Depreciable Assets         (272,402)  
        (335,613) 

Deferred Tax Exp./(Income) on Interest Receivable          (106,706)               (19,051)  
Deferred Tax Exp./(Income) on Unrealized Foreign Exch. Gain/(Loss)    11,987             (339,769)  
Deferred Tax Exp./(Income) on Cash Incentive Receivable       (4,703,090)            4,271,943  
Deferred Tax Exp./(Income) on PF Lapse Receivable         94,657             41,206 

 ---------------  --------------- 
 (4,975,554)  3,618,716 
 =========  ========= 

 The provision for deferred tax expenses/ (income) is made to pay/adjust future income tax 
liability/asset due to accumulated temporary differences.  
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37. DISCLOSURE ON RECLASSIFICATION: 

Margin balance on acceptance has been separated from cash & cash equivalent and       
difference of comparative year has adjusted with trade payable in statement of cash flows 
and financial charges (F.C) has shown in financing activities from operating activities in 
statement of cash flows due to separate from administrative & selling overhead. 
 

38. PRIOR YEAR ADJUSTMENT: 
 

a) According to section 232 (3) Labour Act 2006 (amendment in 2013) & Rules 2015, 
section 214 Gazetted on 15th September 2015, the Government is deducting @ 
0.03% on our export proceeds which participation of the workers on profit of the 
company as there is no requirement to separate provision of WPP & WF @ 5% on 
profit, so prior year provisioned of PPF & WF has been restated accordingly in 2018-
2019. 
 

b)  As per Financial Reporting Council (FRC) notification no. 
179/FRC/FRN/notification/2020/2 dated 7th July 2020 regarding lapse amount of 
employer’s subscription to provident fund have to return to the company’s annual 
financial statements from 2015 & have to be shown as other income of the company 
accordingly.  

 
 

39. DISCLOSURE ON RESTATEMENT: 
 

As per Financial Reporting Council (FRC) notification no. 
179/FRC/FRM/notification/2020/2, dated July 07, 2020, regarding laps amount of 
employer's subscription to provident fund have to return to the Company's annual financial 
statements from 2015 and have to shown as other income of the company accordingly. As 
the Company did not account for this laps amount, according to the para 43 of IAS 8, 
opening balance of PF lapse receivables (note 15), Deferred Tax Liabilities (note 23e) and 
Retained Earnings as on July 01, 2018 and the financial statements for the year ended 
June 30, 2020 has been restated by the management. Upon such restatement amount of 
Tk. 3,262,016 has been recognized in the opening PF lapse receivables and tax at 25 
percent of such forfeited amount of Tk. 815,504/-  has been accounted for in the opening 
balance of deferred tax liabilities as at July 01, 2018. Accordingly, the amount of Tk. 
2,446,512/- has been transferred to retained earnings. 
 
The effect due to this restatement in opening balance of comparative financial statements 
is material, third statement of financial position has been disclosed according to Para 40A 
of IAS 1. 
 
EPS, NAVPS and NOCFPS for 2018-2019 have been restated due to calculation of 
deferred tax on PF Lapse receivable from July 2015 to June 2019 and net profit after tax, 
retained earnings & deferred tax liability for the year 2018-2019 and 2017-2018 have been 
changed accordingly. 
                                                                                          

         
40. Workers Profit Participation Fund (WPPF): 
 

We are 100% export oriented Ready Made Garment Industry, and as per Bangladesh 
Labor Rule 2015, Chapter XV, section 212-226 provided the rules regarding formation of 
Central Fund and also provision made in rule 214(1) (Ka) for realization of 0.03% from 
every letter of credit / work order of 100% export oriented industries and the company is 
making payment accordingly through bank to the said Central Fund for participation of 
workers in the profit of company. Therefore, the company is performing its lawful duty 
regarding profit participatory fund and there is no further requirement to maintain the fund 
separately as required under section 234 of the labor Act 2006. 
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                                                                                2019-2020                  2018-2019 
                        
41. BASIC EARNING PER SHARE (EPS) – DISCLOSURE UNDER IAS 33  “EARNINGS PER SHARE”: 
 

                                                 Earnings attributable to Ordinary Shareholders    

 Basic EPS = -------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
   Weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period  

                                                              12,428,139                 24,612,738       
   Basic Earnings Per Share (EPS) =  ---------------- = 1.48  =--------------- =2.93 

                                                                      8,400,000                      8,400,000 
 

                                                                                             27,223,435     
                                                                                             Restated EPS =   ------------- =3.24  
                                                                                                        8,400,000                      

 

 Weighted average number of Ordinary Shares outstanding during the year represents the 
number of Ordinary Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year plus the number of 
shares issued during the year multiplied by a time weighting factor. The time weighting 
factor is the number of days the specific number of shares are outstanding as a proportion 
of the total number of days in the period.  
 

 Significant decrease in EPS (i.e. up to 3rd Quarter, EPS from operational activities was Tk. 
1.99 but annually it has been Tk. 1.48) is mainly for decrease of turnover in 4th quarter of 
2019-2020 due to COVID 19 worldwide.  

                                                        

42. NET ASSETS VALUE (NAV) PER SHARE: 
Net Assets (Total Assets-Total Liabilities) 

 NAV Per Share =  -------------------------------------------------------------- 
                         Number of ordinary shares outstanding 
                                                            
                                                         455,066,862                 462,670,726                
                   NAV Per Share (NAVPS) =    -------------- = 54.17  =--------------- =55.08 
                                                                  8,400,000                      8,400,000 

 

                                                                                             467,892,760         
                                                                                    Restated NAVPS =   ------------- = 55.70  
                                                                                                        8,400,000                      

43. NET OPERATING CASH FLOWS PER SHARE (NOCFPS): 
 

Net Operating Cash Flows 
 NOCFPS           =  ---------------------------------------------------------------- 

                           Number of ordinary shares outstanding 
                                                           
                                                              5,550,700                     84,207,874                  

                   NOCF Per Share (NOCFPS) =   -------------- = 0.66  =--------------- =10.02 
                                                                  8,400,000                      8,400,000 

 

                                                                                             175,858,159   
                                                                                    Restated NOCFPS =   ------------- = 20.94  
                                                                                                        8,400,000                      

 

 There was significant variance in net operating cash flows as compared to the last year. 
The Net Operating Cash Flow per Share is Tk. 0.66 but it was Tk. 10.02 in 2018-2019 
which is mainly for less export in 3rd quarter in 2019-2020 due to COVID-19 as compared 
to last year. This scenario is changeable time to time depending on different issues. 
 

44. EVENTS AFTER REPORTING PERIOD:  
 

a) Proposed Dividend: 

The Board of Directors has recommended cash Dividend of Tk. 1.50/- per Share for the 
year 2019-20 at the Board meeting held on October 28, 2020. The total amount of 
Dividend is Tk. 12,600,000/- 
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b) Effect of COVID 19: 
 

Due to continue of Corona Virus (COVID -19) pandemic from January 2020 & worldwide 
lockdown, our industry has been badly effected. Foreign buyers have cancelled & hold 
contracts indiscriminately & these effects are continuing. As a result, to keep the factory 
running & not sack workers & employees, we have been/are being complied to maintain 
production & export at even lower than our cost which has/is causing us financial loss. We 
are trying our best to overcome these extremely difficult situations. Such situation is being 
faced by all types of industries in our country & abroad.  
 

c) Other Significant Events: 
There is no other significant event that has occurred between the Statement of Financial 
Position date and the date when the financial statements were authorized for issue by the 
Board of Directors of the Company. 
 

45. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS:  
 

Apex Spinning & Knitting Mills Limited has few transactions with Apex Yarn Dyeing 
Limited and   Matex Bangladesh Limited with common director. These transactions are 
considered as related party transactions as per IAS 24 "Related Party Disclosures". The 
transactions are occurred during the period with an arm’s length price as per normal 
business policy for buying & selling of dyes & chemical and yarn dyeing. The details are 
given below: 
                                                                                                                                             2019-2020 

 Name of the Parties Opening 
Balance 

Purchase 
during the Year 

Paid during the 
Year 

Closing 
Balance  

 i. Matex Bangladesh Ltd. - 119,843,442 119,843,442 - 

 ii. Apex Yarn Dyeing Ltd. - 21,963,627 21,963,627 - 

                         
                                                                                                                                             2018-2019 

Name of the Parties Opening 
Balance 

Purchase 
during the Year 

Paid during the 
Year 

 Closing 
Balance  

i. Matex Bangladesh Ltd. - 147,001,009 147,001,009  - 

ii. Apex Yarn Dyeing Ltd. - 72,790,387 72,790,387  - 

 

 KEY MANAGEMENT BENEFITS: 
 

Refer to Note # 33, we have provided Directors' Remuneration, Board Meeting Fees and 
Salaries and Allowances.  
 

The Company is paying Remuneration to the 03 (three) Directors who are rendering full 
time service to the Company and in addition to that there is nothing paid to them. 
 

The company operates a contributory provident fund which is administrates by the Board 
of Trustee. The company pays its monthly contribution to the Provident Fund Trust and the 
company has no further liability. The company also has a Group Insurance Scheme. 
Group Insurance premium is paid to insurance company once in a year and if there is any 
claim that will be entertained by the insurance company. In addition to the above there is 
nothing paid to the key management except salary & allowance. 
 

46.  GENERAL: 
 

a) Production Capacity (Quantity in pieces):  
 % Quantity 

(2019-20) 
%   Quantity   

(2018-19) 
Capacity  100 33,600,000 100 33,600,000 
Production 71.30 23,956,644 90.48 30,402,264 
     

 The decrease of production during the period due to effect of COVID 19 as compared 
to last year.  
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                                                                                         2019-2020                 2018-2019 
b)Production (Quantity in Dozen):  
        

  T, Polo & Sweat Shirts  1,996,387     2,533,522  
     

                                                                                                       
c) Export  (Quantity in Dozen): 

 

 T, Polo & Sweat Shirts  1,970,209  2,547,129 
 
 

d)   Salaries  & Wages:     
No. of  Employees  Taka 

Above Tk.  8,000.00 per month 5,513     1,236,221,237 

Below  Tk. 8,000.00 per month  -          - 
    

 

 

47. PAYMENTS /PERQUISITES TO DIRECTORS/OFFICERS (KEY MANAGEMENT): 
 

The aggregate amounts paid / provided during the year in respect of Directors and Officers of 
the Company as defined in the Securities and Exchange Commission Rules, 1987, are disclosed 
below:  
  Directors  Officers 

Board Meeting Fees 14,500                - 
Salaries and Allowance 3,540,000       

125,565,011 
Provident Fund Contribution               -  6,890,566 
Bonus               -  20,575,195 
Perquisites 
 
 

              -  78,349,558 

         

48. CAPITAL EXPENDITURE COMMITMENT: 
 

 There was no capital expenditure contracted or incurred or provided for as at 30th June 
2020. 

 There was no material capital expenditure authorized by the Board or contracted for as at 30 th June 
2020. 

 
49.CONTINGENT LIABILITY: 
 

 There is Tk. 17.07 million as Bank guarantee to “Titas Gas Transmission & Distribution Company 
Ltd” & Reliance Insurance Com. Ltd for which the Company is contingently liable as on 30 th June 
2020. 

 

50.DURING THE YEAR UNDER REVIEW: 
 

 No amount of money was spent by the Company for compensating any member of the 
Board for special service rendered except as stated above. 

 There was no claim against the Company not acknowledged as debt on 30th June 2020. 

 There was no Bank Guarantee issued by the Company on behalf of the Directors. 

 There was no credit facility available to the Company under any contract, or availed of as 
on 30th June 2020 other than trade credit available in the ordinary course of business. 

 There were no expenses incurred in foreign exchange on account of Royalty, Technical 
Experts, Professional & Advisory Fee, Interest, and Brokerage & Commission etc. 

 There was no expense on account of Miscellaneous/General Expenses. 
 
    
Sd/-   Sd/-  Sd/- 
Zahur Ahmed PhD Shahriar Ahmed Kamruzzaman FCA 
Managing Director Director Chief Financial Officer 
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Annexure-1 

  

Reconciliation of Net Profit with Cash Flows from Operating Activities: 
  

         Reconciliation of net income or net profit with cash flows from operating activities making adjustment 
for non-cash items, for non-operating items and for the net changes in operating accruals has been 
disclosed as per BSEC notification BSEC/ CMRRCD/2006-158/208/Admin/81 dated 20 June, 2018. 

      
  

 

      
 

      

2019-2020   2018-2019 
CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES: 

             Profit Before Tax Expenses  
   

30,700,794 
 

55,689,962 

Add: Depreciation During the Year  
  

38,059,655 
 

40,989,382 

Less: Effect of Foreign Exchange Translation Gain/(Loss) 
 

        - 
 

48,743 

Less: Finance Income Adjustment  (6,806,689)  (6,440,248) 

Add: Interest & Other Financial Charges Paid  58,405,412        76,909,098 

(Increase)/Decrease in Inventories    
  

(136,335,171) 
 

476,863 

(Increase)/Decrease in Trade Receivable 
  

87,495,460 
 

      82,796,670 

(Increase)/Decrease in Advance Deposit & Prepayments    (3,533,521) 
 

(882,041) 

(Increase)/Decrease in Other Receivable 
  

47,030,900 
 

(30,823,000) 

Income Tax Paid During the Year 
  

(25,199,824) 
 

(23,074,775) 

Increase/(Decrease) in Trade Payables 
  

(127,698,788) 
 

    (50,073,272) 

Increase/(Decrease) in Other Payables 
  

43,432,472 
 

      30,240,776 

 ---------------  --------------- 

NET CASH GENERATED FROM (USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES  5,550,700 
 

  175,858,159 

      =========  ========= 

         

RECONCILIATION 
                NET CASH GENERATED FROM (USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES-INDIRECT METHOD 5,550,700 

 
175,858,159 

NET CASH GENERATED FROM (USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES-DIRECT METHOD 5,550,700 
 

175,858,159 

     ---------------  --------------- 

   
 Differences   0.00 

 
0.00 

     =========  ========= 
 

Note: Necessary re-arrangement was made in statement of cash flows in comparative 
year 2018-2019 due to separate of margin balance on acceptance and financial charges 
(F.C) from cash & cash equivalent & from administrative & selling overhead respectively 
considering the nature of transactions.  
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 PROXY FORM  
The Director 

Apex Spinning & Knitting Mills Limited 

Rupayan Golden Age, 5th & 6th Floor 

99 Gulshan Avenue, Gulshan, Dhaka-1212 

Bangladesh    BO ID:                 

 Register Folio No................................................….…............ 

 No. of Shares.......…................................................................ 

 
I/We..............................................................................................……………………….……............................................. 

of.............................................................................................................................……………….……………………….... 

Being a member of APEX SPINNING & KNITTING MILLS LIMITED hereby appoints 

Mr./Mrs./Miss.................................................………………..………….............................................................................. 

of.....................................................................................………………........……………......…...............……………….… 

as my/our proxy to attend and vote for me/us and on my/our behalf at the TWENTY-NINTH ANNUAL GENERAL 

MEETING of the Company will be held on Thursday the December 24, 2020 at 9.30 A.M. by using digital platform 

through link http://virtualagm.apexknitting.com (in pursuance with BSEC Order SEC/SRMIC/94-231/25 dated 

08 July 2020) and or at any adjournment thereof. Signed this..................day of.....................2020. 

 
 
 AFFIX 

TWENTY 

TAKA 

REVENUE 

STAMP 

 

  

   

(Signature of the Proxy)  

BO ID:                  

Register Folio No……… 

Dated……………………                                                                                                   

 
Signature verified 

                                                                                                                                      -----------------------------------------                                                   

                                                                                                                                      Signature of the Shareholder(s) 

Authorized Signatory                                                                                                     Dated……………….……………                                                                                        

 

Note: A member entitled to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting may appoint only another member as 

proxy to attend and vote in his/her stead.  

 

[ 

 APEX SPINNING & KNITTING MILLS LIMITED 
Rupayan Golden Age, 5th & 6th Floor, 99 Gulshan Avenue 

Gulshan, Dhaka-1212, Bangladesh 
 

 SHAREHOLDERS’ ATTENDANCE SLIP  

 

 

I/We record my attendance at the TWENTY-NINTH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING being held on Thursday the 

December 24, 2020 at 9.30 A.M. by using digital platform through link http://virtualagm.apexknitting.com (in 

pursuance with BSEC Order SEC/SRMIC/94-231/25 dated 08 July 2020). 

Name of Member (s) .......................…………...........................………………………….……………….............................. 

BO ID:                   

Register Folio No.....................holding of............................Ordinary Shares of Apex Spinning & Knitting Mills Limited. 

 
 
 

Signature of Shareholder(s) 

 
N.B. : (1) Please Note that AGM can only be attended by the honorable Shareholders or properly constituted 

Proxy. Therefore, any friend or children accompanying with honorable Shareholders or Proxy cannot 

be allowed into the meeting. 

 

 

https://askml.bdvirtualagm.com/
https://askml.bdvirtualagm.com/

